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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung
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Mr. NG Bo Kwong
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Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung cra

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN
THE HONG KONG SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE

REGION OF THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
(THE “PRC")("HONG KONG")

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Investors’ enquiries:

17M Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Transfer of shares:

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit D3, 8/F, TML Tower

No. 3 Hoi Shing Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Ming Fai Industrial Estate
Bainikeng, Pinghu, Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC

WEBSITE

www.mingfaigroup.com
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GHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

BEZE-_E_=F+-A=+—-HLEEZ2RE

Revenue increased 15.3% to approximately HK$2,067.3 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$1,793.0 million).

Gross profit increased 18.1% to approximately HK$501.7
million (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$424.8 million).

Gross profit margin increased 0.6 percentage points to 24.3%
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: 23.7%).

Operating profit was approximately HK$144.1 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$91.8 million).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$104.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$75.5 million).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2023 of HK5.0 cents per share of the Company (the
“Share”) was recommended, together with the interim dividend
of HK2.0 cents per Share for the six months ended 30 June
2023 was declared, representing a total dividend of HK7.0
cents per Share (for the year ended 31 December 2022: HK4.0
cents per Share) and the annual dividend payout ratio of 48.6%
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: 38.5%).

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFEHBEME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended 31 December
BZ+t=-A=t+—-HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
ZE-NE ZZZZF T T CZZZ=§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET THET
Revenue ION 2,043,095 1,353,099 1,435,826 1,793,025 2,067,273
Profit/(loss) before REFTERLAD
income tax wAl/ (E18) 127,102 101,537 (94,405) 89,986 144,074
Income tax expenses FTsRiF> (35,022) (26,937) (3,520) (20,144) (48,443)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREM/(BR) 92,080 74,600 (97,925) 69,842 95,631

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
REEE REzKk&E

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“T-hF —E-FF C—T-—-F —F--fF C—B-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FAT FAET THT
ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 569,549 610,755 593,988 545,131 558,312
Current assets TEEE 1,269,396 1,192,680 1,144,736 1,204,330 1,406,916
Total assets BERE 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461 1,965,228

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkEE
Total equity Bl 1,130,906 1,192,334 1,094,446 1,131,481 1,193,216
Non-current liabilities ERBER 17,905 24,153 22,574 21,609 23,416
Current liabilities TEAE 690,134 586,948 621,704 596,371 748,596
Total liabilities BEQE 708,039 611,101 644,278 617,980 772,012
Total equity and liabilities HREXNAE 1,838,945 1,803,435 1,738,724 1,749,461 1,965,228

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K 05



KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
TERREEERZ

Revenue Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company
LN AATREEAEERR(FR)
HKS$ million B &S 7T HK$ million B&EHIT
(% Change Z &) H 5 tb) (% Change Z &) HE 7 tk)
2019 2,043.1 2019 97.9
—E-NEF (-0.5%) —T—hE (-2.3%)
2020 1,353.1 2020 79.0
s 2 (:33.8%) BT (-19.3%)
2021 14358 (93.5) 2021
==—1F (+6.1%) (A i) T
2022 1,793.0 2022 755
—T--fF (+24.9%) —E—— (N/A TN5E )

—B-=F (+15.3%) =t 3 ¥ (+38.0%)

Basic earnings/(loss) per Share attributable to Dividend per Share
owners of the Company BRES
KARNEEABREERERRR (&HB)
HK cents A1l HK cents 71l
(% Change # &) & 5 tk) (% Change # &) & 5 tk)
2019 135 2019 45
—T-NF (-2.9%) —T—NEF (-35.7%)
2020 10.8 2020 25
—ToTE (-20.0%) ke e 24 (-44.4%)
(128) 2021 2021 =
2022 10.4 2022 4.0
=ER= g3 (N/A T3E ) T (N/A 3@ )

22 A 2 . A
=& (+38.5%) —E-=f (+75 o%

—Eg-=
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

2023 was a year with both challenges and opportunities. The global
economy has been affected by factors such as high inflation pressure,
continuous interest rate hikes by central banks of many countries and
high interest rates, which have intensified the uncertainty. Coupled
with geopolitical tensions, there is a risk that further economic
growth may be impeded, limiting the recovery of consumption and
adversely affecting the willingness and purchasing power of tourists.
Despite the unclear economic outlook, the global tourism industry
has shown a gradual recovery. According to the first United Nations
World Tourism Organisation (“UNWTO") World Tourism Barometer
published in 2024, international tourism ended 2023 at 88% of
pre-pandemic levels, with an estimated 1.3 billion international
arrivals. According to the UNWTO Tourism Recovery Tracker, both
international air capacity and passenger demand recovered about
90% of pre-pandemic levels through October 2023 (The International
Air Transport Association). Global occupancy rates in accommodation
establishments reached 65% in November 2023, slightly above 62%
in November 2022 (based on STR data).

As the global tourism industry gradually recovers, the Group’s overall
performance has been steadily improving. The Group recorded an
overall revenue of approximately HK$2,067.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, an increase of 15.3% as compared with
approximately HK$1,793.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, in which the hospitality supplies business, operating supplies
and equipment (“OS&E"”) business and health care and hygienic
products business contributed approximately HK$1,697.2 million,
HK$193.3 million and HK$176.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$1,376.9 million, HK$149.4 million and HK$266.7
million), respectively.

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$501.7 million, representing an increase of 18.1%
as compared with approximately HK$424.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. The gross profit margin of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 increased 0.6 percentage points to
24.3% (for the year ended 31 December 2022: 23.7%). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$104.2 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$75.5 million).

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRERE
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BIREZEKRITAIKF 288% - BIBR ki A
RIFHPZRN3ME - RIBH S B R IREAS
MRBXEEEMES BE_T_=F+
A(BEM=ERHeE)  BRMEENIR
IREF K MEERRITAIKF ZH90% °
R-ZZE_=F+—-A 2XEBAEXE
65% BER-_ZE-——F+—B162% (I8
IRSTREUR) -

BEERIRIREXEZFPEFH NEBMHER
¥ETITEBSRA - BHE_T _=F1+_A4
—t+—HLEFE AEBEHSEBKALY
20673 EBA L REBEE_Z_—_F+=
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REE((EERRREE]) EZBARERZ
BERHERRESRBEE T _=F+=_A
=+ —HIEFEHFLL1,697. 288 T -
1933 &8t k1768E B L (HE_Z
T E+-A=F+—HIEFEE : §91,376.98
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
TEHES (&)

The Group believes that the current business environment is complex
and ever-changing, and making good use of production bases is a
key element for achieving long-term sustainability. The Group
operates production lines for hospitality supplies products in the
Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia“). These production lines benefit
from abundant labour resources and a favourable geographical
location. While reducing production costs, these production lines
have also achieved the synergistic effect of efficient production and
potential business expansion for the Group. While leveraging these
production lines to meet current business development needs, the
Group will also strive to explore the potential business opportunities
in other surrounding countries in the Southeast Asia region. The
Group will continue to maintain market sensitivity, actively utilise the
production lines, timely adjust and strengthen the capacity expansion
in Southeast Asia, and further accelerate the exploration process of
OS&E business, so as to take advantage of the cost-effectiveness of
low tariffs and the broad business opportunities available in the
Southeast Asian market.

Looking ahead, although the trend of globalisation and diversification
of consumption is intensifying, potentially benefiting the tourism
sector, the global economic environment is becoming more complex
and significant downward pressure on the economy persists. The
Group adopts a prudent attitude towards the future development of
the tourism industry, will actively prepare for future challenges and
opportunities, and adjust our development strategies according to
future trends, so as to support the stable development of the Group’s
business.

To ensure the long-term sustainability of the business, the Group will
actively practise the concept of green development and production
from its own business scope to embrace the opportunities brought
by the circular economy. In the future, the Group will actively explore
more possibilities for sustainable production. This includes, but is not
limited to, exploring new environmentally friendly materials,
alternative technologies, innovative product processes, and improving
the recyclability, reusability and biodegradability of packaging
materials, to promote the alignment of social value and commercial
value.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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The recovery of the global tourism industry depends on various
factors, including the economy and geopolitics. The Group will
actively prepare for the challenges that lie ahead and closely monitor
market changes, timely adjust the operational strategies, continuously
improve the product portfolio to meet the ever-changing market
demand with high-quality and diversified products and services.
Additionally, the Group will place great values on the long-term
customer development, gain insightfully understanding of customer
needs, and establish stable and long-lasting cooperative relationships.
While steadily improving the existing businesses, the Group will also
actively leverage the resource advantages of regions worldwide to
inject greater momentum into the overall sustainable development of
the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to all Shareholders
and business partners for their support and trust over the years. | also
highly appreciate to our management and employees for their loyalty,
professionalism and contributions, and to work with the Group in a
challenging environment.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEBN®mREDM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Key Financial Highlights

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group:

g JE)

FEMBERE

UNTEINAEEGEERHHRHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2023 2022 Change
—EBC=E T o

HKS$ million HK$ million %

mEET  BEET HAl

Revenue WA 2,067.3 1,793.0 15.3%

Gross Profit EH 501.7 424.8 18.1%

Profit attributable to owners of the Company <2 A1 B A FE 15 3 A 104.2 75.5 38.0%
Basic earnings per Share attributable to KREIHEEAEGEER

owners of the Company (HK cents) EARBH GEM) 14.4 10.4 38.5%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable to RREHEE AEGEER

owners of the Company (HK cents) ESERR ) 14.4 10.4 38.5%

Dividend per Share (HK cents) BRRE CEML) 7.0 4.0 75.0%

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the total revenue of the
Group recorded an increase of 15.3% to approximately HK$2,067.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$1,793.0 million). For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
revenues of the hospitality supplies business, OS&E business and
health care and hygienic products business were approximately
HK$1,697.2 million, HK$193.3 million and HK$176.8 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$1,376.9 million,
HK$149.4 million and HK$266.7 million) respectively, which
represented 82.1%, 9.4% and 8.5% (for the year ended 31
December 2022: 76.8%, 8.3% and 14.9%) of the Group’s total
revenue respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2023
increased 18.1% to approximately HK$501.7 million, compared with
approximately HK$424.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. Gross profit margin increased 0.6 percentage points to 24.3%
from 23.7% as compared with the prior year, benefiting from the
increase in revenues of the hospitality supplies business and OS&E
business and various measures taken by the Group, including
tightening cost control and more effort in sales of products with high
profit margins.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$104.2 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$75.5 million).

Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per Share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 were HK14.4 cents
and HK14.4 cents (for the year ended 31 December 2022: HK10.4
cents and HK10.4 cents) respectively.

Final dividend

The Board had resolved to propose a final dividend of HK5.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year ended
31 December 2022: HK3.0 cents). A sum of the interim and final
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2023 was expected to be
HK7.0 cents per Share (for the year ended 31 December 2022: HK4.0
cents). The proposed final dividend is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting to be held on 22 May 2024 (“"AGM").

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$375.1 million (as at 31 December
2022: approximately HK$305.4 million).

Net assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net assets was approximately
HK$1,193.2 million (as at 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$1,131.5 million).

EEBN®WR DN (E)

RDTER AEGRF

BE-E-=F+= =+ — Bk EESK
ANEEB ARIEEF 1042888 T (HE
B+ -_A=+—HIFE : 4755
BEBIT) °

BRER

HE_ZT-_=fF+-"A=+—RHIEE XK
REHEBEABEBREAREERN DR A
1448 W R144B WL (BE=_ZS__F+=
A=+—HLIFE 104810 %10.478L) o

RAERE

EESCRARRNEE S _=F+=A
_‘f'*ElJJ:iE/)fE?éé?EEﬁH B 15081l
(B2 -_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE:3.0
B - BHEE T —_=F+-_A=+—
BEFEMNTHHEAHREZATAETR
708 LW(BE=E-_—F+=-_A=+—H1
FE 40581  -BREAREBEAFEBN=

E-NERA -+ BRI IRERFRE
([REBAEARS]) FEMEBHAEER -

RBEERHBER

REB - EFTRELESEERARERE
BERSHESKRR  WEEERRITRER
EREE NENBEEEMRRERNERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEBS®WE DM (&)

Borrowings e
The borrowing structure, maturity profile and currency denomination AREEE 2 BEAHE - BB R EEET
of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: BWT :
Borrowing structure: EEEE -
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2023 2022
—EZ=fF —E-—
Effective interest rate  HK$ million Effective interest rate  HK$ million
BBRAR BEETR BRI = BEET
Secured bank borrowings Floating rate of 1.7% per annum 3.2 Floating rate of 1.7% per annum 4.5
with repayable on over 1-month Hong Kong Inter- over 1-month HIBOR
demand clause bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
BRREREERER —EABBRITEEFEE — AR BEBRITRFERFEE
ZEERBITEE ([BERBITRRXFERE]) MEFE1.7%2FEF =
MERE1.7% 2 ZFEHFE
Floating rate of the higher of 4.1 Floating rate of the higher of 6.3
1.7% per annum over 1-month 1.7% per annum over 1-month
HIBOR or the cost to the bank of HIBOR or the cost to the bank of
funding the borrowing funding the borrowing
—BREBRRITEXFER —[ERAEBRTRAEHFEE
MEFE1.7% MEFIE1.7%
RRTB/OBERF 2BEE RRTENRERAZBEE
2R E = ZIFBF| &
Floating rates ranging from 39.7 Floating rates ranging from 69.8
1.8%-1.82% per annum over 1.67%-1.82% per annum over
1-month Term Secured Overnight 1-month Term SOFR
Financing Rate (“SOFR")
—EAHRERBRAERE — {8 A BB EREREE F X
((ERBERMERE]) MAFERE1.67%%E1.82%
mAFERE1.8%E1.82% ZIFBHE
2R E =
Floating rate of the higher of - Floating rate of the higher of 27.8
1.7% per annum over 1-month 1.7% per annum over 1-month
London Inter-bank Offered Rate LIBOR or the cost to the bank of
(“"LIBOR") or the cost to the bank of funding the borrowing
funding the borrowing
— A mARTEEHFEE —EARBBITRRFEE
((MRBRITEARFER]) MEFIE.7%
MER=1.7% HMITBNREN A B EE
RRTHROBERL 2B BE 2B =
23 =
Secured bank borrowings Fixed rate of - Fixed rate of -
without repayable on 1.4% per annum 1.4% per annum
demand clause
I IR EREE R FFE1.4% FHE1.4%
ZEERBITEE Z B EF R 2 [EE 7 &
Secured other borrowings Fixed rates ranging from 2.2 Fixed rates ranging from 2.4
without repayable on 0.36%-1.38% per annum 0.36%-1.38% per annum
demand clause
b 1% B SRR R 1R N FEHE0.36%Z1.38% NFERN*0.36%%E1.38%
ZEEREMEE Z B EH = 2 [EE 7 &
49.2 110.8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Maturity profile:

The repayment terms of the borrowings without taking into
consideration the effect of repayable on demand clause are as
follows:

EEENRE DN (&)

FIEIBER -

I EARREREEGTOZET  EE
REFRHERUNT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—EB=F ===
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBTT
Within 1 year PM1ER 22.8 61.4
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2F 7 H 14.7 23.1
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 2 [H 10.5 25.1
Over 5 years S5 E 1.2 1.2
49.2 110.8
Currency denomination: BEME1E -
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -4
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEBT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 7.2 10.8
United States dollars ETT 39.8 97.5
Japanese Yen H 2.2 2.5
49.2 110.8
Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated fEEF BN A M IEIRE M E21 -

financial statements.

Charges on Group assets

Except for other borrowings of approximately HK$2.2 million as at 31
December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$2.5 million), which was secured by
personal guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and a bank deposit of the Group.

EEEEKRHF
BR-_E-_=F+_A=1+—HzHEMEE
HNR2EEBT(MN-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—
BH:RITEREMEELN258E8T) AKRE
E eI R e 2 B A ERIER TN - RITE
BEYUAEEETYWE  BERKE  FH
EENR—BRITFRERR -

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEBS®WE DM (&)

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

IEEZCEMEEZREEN T

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$ million HK$ million
BEABT BEBTT
Property, plant and equipment %% - BB M&RE 15.6 19.0
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 26.7 27.9
Bank deposit RITIF 12.0 11.7
54.3 58.6
Gearing ratio BEBEHZE

The gearing ratio was calculated as net debt (i.e. borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio
was not applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2023 and as at
31 December 2022.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related
currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing revenue denominated in the same currency.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments as at 31 December 2023 and as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group has no material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: same).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Reflecting on 2023, the global economy encountered both challenges
and opportunities in a highly volatile global market. Central banks in
multiple countries persisted in raising interest rates but struggled to
curb overall inflation levels. Geopolitical issues continued to intensify,
and the implementation of unexpected contractionary monetary
policies further impeded global economic recovery. Confronted with
ongoing global economic pressures, consumers tended to adopt a
conservative approach to cope with uncertainties, resulting in weak
market demand and a challenging business environment. However,
the re-establishment of global logistics and transportation networks
in the post-pandemic era, coupled with the gradual reopening of
borders, accelerated the resurgence of international tourism, leading
to an overall improvement in the tourism industry. This favourable
trend contributed to the growth in business results of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the recent data released by UNWTO, the overall
performance of international tourism improved, with nearly 1.3
billion international arrivals in 2023, representing a year-on-year
increase of 33.9%, and reaching 88% of the pre-pandemic level in
2019. Despite the macroeconomic drag on consumer demand,
resulting in a slower-than-expected growth of the tourism industry,
the global tourism industry demonstrated a steady recovery in 2023
possessing an increase in market demand for hospitality supplies
products during the year.

Revenue from the Group’s hospitality supplies business for the year
ended 31 December 2023 increased by 23.3% to approximately
HK$1,697.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$1,376.9 million), which contributed 82.1% (for
the year ended 31 December 2022: 76.8%) to the Group’s total
revenue. Gross profit from the hospitality supplies business increased
by 26.4% to approximately HK$410.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$324.7 million). The segment’s gross profit margin
increased by 0.6 percentage points to 24.2% for the year ended 31
December 2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022: 23.6%).

Hospitality supplies business revenues for the year ended 31
December 2023 from the PRC, Hong Kong, the North America,
Europe, other Asia Pacific region and Australia were approximately
HK$547.8 million, HK$182.6 million, HK$250.9 million, HK$262.1
million, HK$357.0 million and HK$91.4 million (for the year ended
31 December 2022: approximately HK$350.4 million, HK$175.9
million, HK$183.3 million, HK$251.0 million, HK$262.2 million and
HK$151.0 million) respectively, accounted for 32.3%, 10.8%,
14.8%, 15.4%, 21.0% and 5.4% (for the year ended 31 December
2022: 25.4%, 12.8%, 13.3%, 18.2%, 19.0% and 11.0%) of the
total hospitality supplies business segment revenue respectively.

EEBN®WR DN (E)

BEHREMER

RIREE A B Rk A 4D B A ) BUE
BRKEBREBRBAEMNE  —T-=FF
SRR B A ORI T3ME - IR F IR 033.9% 0 A
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RERFFTIEM -
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NEBE AL SR EREBKA LEFA23.3%
EN1,6972EEAR T (BEZE-_F+=
A=+—HBLFE : #1376 9585 T) °
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S8BT 2621888 357.08 88T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEBEN®WK D (&)

Hospitality supplies business segment
revenue by geographical location

0.3% 14.8%
21.0% 19.0%
11.0%
12.8%

® The PRC HE]
® Hong Kong #Hi#
©® North America 1t3

Europe BM

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

In the recently released China Construction Pipeline Trend Report
from Lodging Econometrics, analysts reported that there were 683
new hotels/106,463 rooms opened in China in 2023. The country’s
total hotel construction pipeline, as of the end of 2023, stands at
3,788 projects with 691,772 rooms. Revenue from the Group's OS&E
business was approximately HK$193.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, representing an increase of 29.4% as compared
with approximately HK$149.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, and representing 9.4% (for the year ended 31
December 2022: 8.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. Gross profit
from the OS&E business increased by 31.0% to approximately
HK$47.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$36.1 million). The
segment’s gross profit margin increased 0.3 percentage points to
24.5% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year ended 31
December 2022: 24.2%).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, OS&E business revenues from
the PRC and other markets were approximately HK$141.3 million and
HK$52.0 million (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately HK$103.2 million and HK$46.2 million) respectively,
representing 73.1% and 26.9% (for the year ended 31 December
2022: 69.1% and 30.9%) of the total OS&E business segment
revenue respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Operating supplies and equipment business
segment revenue by geographical location

30.9%

® The PRC A

The Group will continue to be driven by the market demand, further
optimise product categories and quality, and adjust product mix
strategy. This will not only consolidate the long-term and stable
cooperative partnership with the hospitality industry but also extend
business cooperation to explore the underlying demands in the OS&E
business. The Group aims to expand the scale of replenishment
business to achieve a sustainable cooperation model. Additionally,
the Group will actively seize the development opportunities in the
hotel construction projects in Southeast Asia and further expand the
customer base to unleash the potential growth of OS&E business.

Health Care and Hygienic Products Business

The Group is dedicated to the production of high-quality health care
and hygienic products and disposable infection control products to
meet diverse demands in the market. As the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic waned, the market demand for pandemic prevention-
related products slumped, shifting the market supply and demand
structure and adversely affecting the revenue of this business
segment in 2023. The Group will continue to guard consumers’
health in the post-pandemic era by re-examining and repositioning
the development plan of the business segment based on market
demand and actively enriching the categories and services of existing
health care and hygienic products. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to explore the potential needs of our customers and better
adapt to the changes in the market with diversified products, so as to
ensure sustainable operation.

Revenue from the Group’s health care and hygienic products business
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately HK$176.8
million (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$266.7 million), which contributed 8.5% (for the year ended 31
December 2022: 14.9%) of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit
from the health care and hygienic products business was
approximately HK$44.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$64.0
million). The segment’s gross profit margin increased 0.9 percentage
points to 24.9% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: 24.0%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEBSN®WR DM (&)

With the post-pandemic era, there was sharp decrease of demand for
anti-epidemic products in Hong Kong. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the revenue of health care and hygienic products
business from Hong Kong was approximately HK$4.3 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$77.7 million),
representing 2.4% (for the year ended 31 December 2022: 29.1%)
of the total health care and hygienic products business segment
revenue. The Group continued to drive the health care and hygienic
products business development in other regions. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the revenues of health care and hygienic
products business from the North America and other markets were
approximately HK$162.4 million and HK$10.1 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$154.7 million and
HK$34.3 million) respectively, representing 91.9% and 5.7% (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: 58.0% and 12.9%) of the total
health care and hygienic products business segment revenue
respectively.

Health care and hygienic products business
segment revenue by geographical location

] 12.9%
57% S o 91.9%
200 S 2023
—=_=

® North America 1t

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

The Group is aiming to become an excellent international corporate
brand specialising in hospitality supplies and personal care products,
create maximum value for stakeholders, and support ecology for
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Opportunities and challenges co-exist in the global
tourism industry

Looking ahead to 2024, the global economy will continue to face
numerous risks and challenges, including escalating geopolitical
tensions, weak trade growth, persistently high core inflation, and
rising financial vulnerabilities. These factors will exert significant
downward pressure on the global economy, impacting consumer
demand and travel intentions within the tourism industry. Despite
these challenges, opportunities for development still exist in the
tourism sector. According to the first World Tourism Barometer
released by the UNWTO in 2024, international tourism is expected to
fully recover pre-pandemic levels in 2024, with initial estimates
pointing to 2% growth above 2019 levels, subject to the pace of
recovery in Asia and the evolution of existing economic and
geopolitical downside risks. The Group acknowledges the numerous
challenges expected in 2024, but also recognises the steady growth
potential for future business development. To mitigate the effects of
hidden global fluctuations, the Group will continue implementing
flexible measures in its operations.

Leverage Cambodia plant to navigate global
economic challenges

To navigate the challenges of the global economy, international
businesses increasingly faced with cost pressures, including trade
tariffs and raw material supply. To mitigate these pressures and explore
the emerging markets like Southeast Asia, the Group has strategically
initiated operations at our first Southeast Asia-oriented production line
in Cambodia a few years ago. Over time, we have continually
developed our production capabilities by expanding into liquid
products, socks and handbags, aiming to achieve cost-efficiency in our
manufacturing process. Looking ahead, the Group will remain
committed to leveraging our presence in Cambodia to further optimise
our manufacturing processes and enhance our competitiveness in the
region. We are dedicated to continuously adapting to market
dynamics, identifying new opportunities, and solidifying our position
as a leading manufacturer and supplier of hospitality supplies in the
global marketplace.

Continuously developing green products in
response to environmental protection

In response to the rising environmental awareness and standards
among governments and various sectors of society and the growing
recognition of environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
considerations in creating sustainable value, the Group has been
committed to the research and development of green products to
meet the demands of local governments and customers for
sustainable governance and operational models. We actively strive to
incorporate more environmentally friendly materials in manufacturing
hospitality supplies products and health care and hygienic products,
thereby accelerating the design and production processes of green
products. The Group continues to pay attention to the trend of ESG,
flexibly implements the concept of environmental protection and
actively fulfils social and corporate responsibilities. We aim to realise
our vision of sustainable industrial chain and green enterprise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEBS®WE DM (&)

Extend long-term business partnerships to achieve
win-win outcomes

The Group’s sustained growth is rooted in the enduring support of
our business partners. Building on our excellent track record, the
Group is committed to meeting the needs of our existing customers
for hospitality supplies, fostering long-term relationships through
top-quality products and services. Moving forward, the Group will
explore opportunities to expand the business scope with existing
customers by broadening our offerings of products, services and
comprehensive solution to enhance customer loyalty and cooperation.
At the same time, the Group will continue to maintain and expand its
customer base, establish long-term and stable cooperative
relationships, and promote cross-regional business cooperation to
create a mutually beneficial business model.

Pragmatic and flexible development strategies
safeguards brand value

The world economy and business environment are ever-changing.
The Group will closely monitor global trends and adjust our
development strategies promptly to manage market risks effectively.
The Group will adapt its product portfolio and marketing strategies
in response to market changes, aiming to minimise the economic
downturns on our businesses. Simultaneously, the Group will actively
expand its global business and develop new products to support a
diversified business region and product lineup, reducing risks
associated with relying on a single region or product. The Group will
maintain a pragmatic business approach and flexible business
strategies to safeguard the Group's solid foundation and explore a
broader long-term development opportunities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group was approximately
6,800 as at 31 December 2023. The employee benefit expenses
including Directors’ emoluments were approximately HK$494.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The remuneration of
employees (including the Directors and senior management) of the
Group are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
also provides various other benefits to designated staff, including
discretionary bonus, social insurance or medical insurance, share
award scheme, continuing education and training programmes. The
Group also launched key performance indicators assessment scheme
and commendation annual award scheme to boost individual
performance and operational efficiency.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEABZEEHR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 62, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and
the formulation of the overall corporate direction and business
strategies of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of
experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung
is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the
son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has
been responsible for human resources and administrative matters of
the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 58, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. LIU has been responsible for sales and marketing since he joined
the Group in May 1995. He oversees sales in the Greater China
Region. Mr. LIU has over 20 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. He obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration in Centenary College of New Jersey, USA in 2011.
Mr. LIU also holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the PRC and
completed a course on International Business Management of
Tsinghua University organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of
Tsinghua University, the PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company, a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
the business development director of the Group. He joined the Group
since 2006 to assist in production and has been actively involved in
both the business and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING
Tsun Wah has extensive experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. He oversees sales in Southeast Asia and overseas markets.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah obtained the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hong Kong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2020. He
graduated in Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing
administration in 2003. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the son of
Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREBABZBEFE (

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 51, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 20 years
of experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 56, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible
for sales and marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas
markets. She was an Executive Director of the Company from 2007
to 2015. Ms. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality
supplies industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in several
companies engaged in hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 69, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2007. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of
senior management experience in managing hotel operations and
hotel investments. He was a deputy managing director in 1992 and
an executive director from July 1997 to January 2001 of Top Glory
International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory”), a former Hong Kong
listed company which was privatised in August 2003. During the
period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to develop and
manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel
developers and prestigious hotel chains on design and project
management.

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 67, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a Non-Executive
Director of the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31 December 2012. He
is a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. NG has over 30 years of management
experience in different industries (including the hospitality supplies
industry). He is the chairman of the International Quality Service
Management Promotion Association and a full member of the Hong
Kong Management Association. He had assisted a number of medium
to large sized enterprises in formulating company development
strategies and establishing management systems in the areas of sales
and marketing, human resources and production management.
Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of Business Administration
programs and senior executive development programs of several
universities. He had been a director of a number of non-listed
companies and is currently a director of Advance Management
Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural Events Limited.
He received a Master degree of Business Administration from the
University of East Asia and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Business
Administration from Tarlac State University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 47, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July
2000. Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal &
Plastic Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He
has been dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX,
an international quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware,
houseware and electrical appliances in household and catering
industries, in emerging and global markets. Mr. SUN is also the
honorary and founding president of Youth Executive Council of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the chairman of The
Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited, the founding
vice chairman and secretary general of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong Q-Mark Council, the
chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and a committee
member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council. Mr. SUN dedicates his
effort on social responsibilities and practices active roles in different
public services in both Hong Kong and China.

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit, aged 46, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2021. He is the chairman of the Audit
Comittee and a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. Mr. KWONG obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration in Anglia Ruskin University, United Kingdom and a
Bachelor degree of Business Administration in Accountancy in the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. KWONG has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. KWONG
was the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of 9LIVES
Group. He was the vice president of finance and management
information system of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the group financial controller of Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and the group financial controller of
Valuetronics Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Limited.

The five Executive Directors whose biographical details are included
in the sub-section headed “Executive Directors” above are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased
to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality
supplies products, trading of operating supplies and equipment and
manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic products.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Group are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 152 of this
annual report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any
dividend, and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the
Group's earnings, financial condition, cash requirements and
availability, and any other factors the Board may consider relevant.
These factors and the payment of dividends is at the discretion of the
Board and the Board reserves the right to change its plan on any
future payment of dividends. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK2.0 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2023, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$14,685,000 was paid on 28 September 2023, including dividend
paid to Shares held for the share award scheme of the Company (the
“Share Award Scheme”).

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2023. Subject to the
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be
paid on or around Friday, 7 June 2024 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 30 May 2024.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

REERERBRAREETMAREAEH
BE_T_=—F+_A=+—"HILFENF
BREELMBEHRER -

ARAR/—HREZEBRRE - Ef B AR E
ENERENEE /@E@%fﬁﬁuiﬁﬁﬁz CIHE
EERmNMRE WRRERIHEREFER
REERR AEBEXEMBRRANEESE
BHBEHENEE P RKRME29 -
%Il‘aﬁﬂnlu\

ES

AEFEHEE_ZE_=F+_A=+—HLHF
EREEH N AFRFEOZI152HENEGA Y
BIEKA ©

iR BBR
EEEAEREBERETATEAAR
% B9 2 RS T4 - A4 7Eﬂﬂx,%\2i

KERBELHEARESES Z2ATE  MAR
HHREE ZEMRARE H—;H}Z,}&#J&%Z
B o FIRTORZEEMREAREMERE 2
iﬁgm;ﬁlﬁﬂ—rﬂi}%ﬁﬂ»‘%.Z@ﬂ 57 75 7R
W EXREABAES  UREZGA
ﬁm?ﬁﬁf"ﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁl@.% It ERZE KR
B RETHESTENBEAERESTSREA
B EEMARRBEIREFTE 2R - g2
ZIREBENZBERASEEEGARAKAF
ZABERMAANEE 2 ERRF -

g

ARARER-_ZE_=ZFAA -+ N\BIZHE
2T _=FA= +E¢/\1IHZEPHHH§E
BEK2.05 1l - & B 485 414,685,000/8

TC BEBRAR R R AT 8 ([ B 228
ED THAERNDERE ZRE -
EXEgRAREBRE_T _=F1T_A
=t —BLUEFENRARE BTS00

FHRERNBRRBFERS LHER - ARRH
EA:T WENALH(EHA)KFIE [
RZZEZWMFERA=+TH (EHM) BH| K
”“Tﬂxi%ﬂﬂmﬂxﬁ/ﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬁﬂng °



CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 17 May 2024 to Wednesday, 22 May 2024 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents
in respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 16 May 2024.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 28 May 2024 to Thursday, 30 May 2024 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all documents in
respect of transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 09 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of this
annual report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group’s
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 20 of
this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products, operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic products are sold to our customers by
direct sales, including hotels and airline operators, or to distributors,
or to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers will
continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will
be able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the
event that any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or
reduces the purchase volume of orders placed with us and we are
unable to obtain replacement orders, our business and profitability
may be adversely affected.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
B85 (&)

Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials
will be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover
any increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other
production costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be
adversely affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the
Group’s customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and systems or
other external factors may have various levels of negative impact on
the results of operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite
systems and policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to
finance loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency
fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks
in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of
financial risk management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Risks relating to compliance with laws and requlations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions. There
is no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not be
changed or additional or more stringent requirement will not be
imposed, compliance with which may cause us to incur significant
expenditure. Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or future
laws and regulations, we may be required to pay substantial fines,
suspend production or cease operations. Consequently, our financial
condition, business and reputation may be adversely affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development
and fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR"”) by applying
“commercial morality, the kindness towards people and protecting
environment”. We comply with the laws and respect commercial
morality. We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant
and reasonable basics. We respect human rights, care for public
welfare. We value integrity and achieve win-win situation by
cooperation. We follow our philosophy of respecting morality and
giving back to society. We value resources and promote
environmental protection. Relying on scientific improvements to
reduce impacts on the environment, while we are seeking for
environmental technologies to maintain sustainable development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also
a responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a
good platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling
and sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group’s
agenda, and environmental management is always an integral part of
the Group’s business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2023", which was prepared in
accordance with “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and had been published on the
HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet
our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our
departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and
needs and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also
conducts comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality
products and services are offered to the customers.

THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated
assets, equity and liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set
out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 of this annual
report.
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SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group did not issue any Shares and debentures during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 63 and
Notes 18 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,021.4 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the
Company incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

In accordance with article 138 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. CHING Chi Keung, LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah
and SUN Eric Yung Tson will retire at the AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.
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Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Disclosure of information of Directors under Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

With effect from 30 September 2023, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit
resigned as the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Operating
Officer of 9LIVES Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts
with the Group’s senior management in full-time employment, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
New VIE Structure

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 22 October
2017 and 19 January 2018 (the “Announcements”), due to
applicable laws and regulatory prohibitions on owning land and real
properties in Cambodia by foreign ownership, the Group has in place
a series of contractual arrangements to establish the VIE Structure
with the Local Partner (i.e. an assistant solicitor of the Cambodia
legal adviser to the Company, who is a Cambodian citizen and an
independent third party) that are designed to allow the Company to
exercise control over the operations of the Landholding Company (i.e.
a company incorporated under the laws of Cambodia and owned as
to 49% by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and 51% by the Local Partner to hold the Land and
Properties) and enjoy the economic benefits in the Land and
Properties. Unless otherwise specified, capitalised terms used herein
shall have the same meanings as defined in the Announcements.

On 16 June 2021, the relevant parties entered into the following
documents to change one of the registered shareholders of the
Landholding Company from the Local Partner to Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, an Executive Director (the “Change of Local Partner”):—

(1) the Termination Agreement, pursuant to which Ming Fai
Holdings Limited and the Local Partner agreed the termination
of the aforesaid contractual arrangements between the Group
and the Local Partner;

(2) the Transfer Documents, pursuant to which the Local Partner
transferred 51% of equity interests of the Landholding
Company to Mr. CHING Tsun Wah; and

(3) the New Structured Documents (collectively, the New Loan
Agreement, the New Power of Attorney, the New Blank
Shareholders’ Resolution, the New Blank Share Transfer
Documents, the New Share Pledge Agreement, the New Call
Option Agreement and the New Shareholders’ Agreement),
pursuant to which the Group established the New VIE
Structure, which was on substantially the same terms as those
in place under the VIE Structure, save as to the identity of the
Local Partner.
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Summary of the principal terms of the New Structured
Documents:—

(1)

(i)

New Loan Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as the
lender and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as the borrower for
an interest-free loan of US$2,500,000 from the date of
signing the New Loan Agreement until the time when
it is terminated for the sole purpose of payment for the
acquisition of 51% of the equity interests of the
Landholding Company. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah shall only
repay the loan, including any, taxes, charges,
indemnities, fees, costs and any expenses and all
obligations and liabilities in relation to the loan under
the New Loan Agreement to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by way of transferring 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah, and any and all shares held by Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah which accounts for 51% of the equity interests of
the Landholding Company (the “Relevant Shares”) to
Ming Fai Holdings Limited or to any other person to be
designated by Ming Fai Holdings Limited.

New Power of Attorney

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, the Landholding Company and
the Company are the parties, pursuant to which
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has granted a general and
irrevocable power of attorney and proxy to the
Directors and their successors (including a liquidator
replacing the Directors) (the “Attorneys”) or its
appointees over all business activities concerning and
his right to vote as the ultimate shareholder of the
Landholding Company and has given the Attorneys or
its appointees the authority and rights to vote as his
proxy at any shareholders’ meeting and board meeting
to deal with all aspects of the management and
operations of the Landholding Company including, but
not limited to, the disposition or acquisition of assets,
appointment of officers and employees, day-to-day
business decisions, maintenance of records, declaration
of profits, signing minutes, filing documents with the
relevant companies registry, and other issues
concerning the Landholding Company which are
allowable by laws in force, and, for and on behalf of
Ming Fai Holdings Limited and as its designated person,
to collect all dividends or profit declared to him as a
shareholder of the Landholding Company, which are to
be transferred and assigned only to Ming Fai Holdings
Limited pursuant to the New Shareholders’ Agreement.

(1)

(1)
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

New Blank Shareholders’ Resolution

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed and thumb-printed
a blank shareholders’ resolution for the approval of the
disposal of any immovable property(ies) of the
Landholding Company.

New Blank Share Transfer Documents

Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has pre-signed the blank share
transfer documents that can be completed and filed
with the Ministry of Commerce of Cambodia in relation
to the Relevant Shares in the Landholding Company
held by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah.

New Share Pledge Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited as pledgee
and Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as pledgor and that
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has pledged the Relevant Shares,
including all dividends, interest or other income, paid
or payable after the date of the New Share Pledge
Agreement in respect of any of the Relevant Shares,
together with any and all rights and benefits that have
been created or exist with respect to the Relevant
Shares or any other shares in Mr. Ching Tsun Wah or
any other device in the nature of a security issued or
suffered by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, as security to
guarantee the performance of the obligations and
liabilities which is owing to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
by Mr. Ching Tsun Wah pursuant to the New Loan
Agreement. Mr. Ching Tsun Wah has undertaken not
to dispose, transfer or otherwise encumber any right
attaching to shares which are pledged as Relevant
Shares without prior written approval from Ming Fai
Holdings Limited.

New Call Option Agreement

Ming Fai Holdings Limited, Mr. CHING Tsun Wah and
the Landholding Company are the parties, pursuant to
which the Landholding Company irrevocably granted
the exclusive right to Ming Fai Holdings Limited or its
assignees, from the date of signing of the New Call
Option Agreement indefinitely until all assets of the
Landholding Company are transferred to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or its assignees and registration
process required thereafter has been completed with
the relevant local authorities, to purchase all or part of
the assets of the Landholding Company at market
value, to the maximum extent allowed by the then
applicable Cambodian laws and regulations. Each of
the Landholding Company and Mr. Ching Tsun Wah
has undertaken to return to Ming Fai Holdings Limited
any consideration it received in the event that Ming Fai
Holdings Limited exercises such option to acquire the
assets of the Landholding Company.
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(vii)  New Shareholders’ Agreement

Pursuant to which Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. Ching Tsun Wah agreed on the rights and
obligations of them as shareholders of the Landholding
Company and also, restrictions against Mr. Ching Tsun
Wah with respect of, among other things, the disposal
of the Relevant Shares, distribution of dividends and
management and operation of the Landholding
Company, to parties other than Ming Fai Holdings
Limited or to any other person to be designated by
Ming Fai Holdings Limited, for three years commencing
from the date of the New Shareholders’ Agreement. If
both parties to the New Shareholders’ Agreement
agree, the term of the New Shareholders’ Agreement
may be renewed by writing every three years, subject
to the compliance with the Listing Rules.

If there are any dividends, profits, benefits or interests
declared in relation to the interests of Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as a shareholder in the Landholding Company, he
can only transfer and assign these interests to Ming Fai
Holdings Limited or to any other person to be designated
by Ming Fai Holdings Limited, and ultimately, the
Company.

Upon the Change of Local Partner, Ming Fai Holdings Limited and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah were the shareholders of the Landholding
Company holding its equity interest as to 49% and 51%, respectively.
The Landholding Company remained as if it was a subsidiary of the
Company and its financial results would continue to be accounted for
and consolidated in the accounts of the Group. The Landholding
Company is not engaged in any business activities other than holding
a land parcel and the properties on the land parcel and for property
investment.

The reasons for replacing the Local Partner with Mr. CHING Tsun
Wah as one of the shareholders of the Landholding Company was
because Mr. CHING Tsun Wah became a Cambodian citizen and his
involvement in the Group’s hospitality supplies business in Cambodia
significantly increased. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has also developed
necessary and adequate knowledge and familiarity with the rules and
regulations, and expertise in the operations of the Group’s hospitality
supplies business in Cambodia through his involvement in the
business since 2018. The Group’s business in Cambodia has also
been maturing and has become largely stable overtime. The Group's
management has also gained expertise overtime from its operations
in Cambodia.

In consideration of the foregoing, the Change of Local Partner (i)
would better safeguard the interests of the Company in the
Landholding Company by having a Director as a shareholder of the
Landholding Company instead of the Local Partner; and (ii)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah would be a more suitable candidate to hold
the 51% shareholding in the Landholding Company than the Local
Partner as he has greater familiarity with the Group and its business.
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Mr. Ching Tsun Wah, being the Executive Director, is a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the New Structured
Documents, in particular, the New Loan Agreement and the New
Shareholders’ Agreement which provides for the transfer and
assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by Mr. Ching
Tsun Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited, constitute a connected
transaction and a continuing connected transaction of the Company,
respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest of all of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the New Loan Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
New Loan Agreement is subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but is exempted from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As none of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transfer and
assignment of dividends, profits, benefits or interests by Mr. Ching Tsun
Wah to Ming Fai Holdings Limited under the New Shareholders’ Agreement
exceeds 5% and the total annual amount payable to Ming Fai Holdings
Limited is below HK$3 million, it is fully exempted from the relevant
requirements of reporting, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Risks and limitations relating to the New VIE Structure:—

o Ming Fai Holdings Limited may bear economic risks as the
shareholder of the Landholding Company, and the Group’s
financial performance may be adversely affected and financial
support may need to be provided if the Landholding Company
suffers losses.

o The New Structured Documents may not be as effective as
direct ownership in providing control over the Landholding
Company if Mr. CHING Tsun Wah fails to perform his
obligations under the New Structured Documents or otherwise
have disputes with the Group.

o It is unforeseeable that there may be change of interpretation
and determination by the Cambodian government on the
compliance of the arrangement contemplated by the New
Structured Documents with Cambodian laws and regulations.

o Potential conflicts of interests or potential disputes may arise
due to dual roles for Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as a shareholder of
the Landholding Company and an Executive Director.

o The Company does not maintain an insurance policy to cover
the risks relating to arrangement under the New VIE Structure.

In order to mitigate the risks, the Board will review and monitor the
overall compliance of the New VIE Structure from time to time. In
case if there is any major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the New VIE Structure or any regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities, the Company will engage external
legal advisers and other professional advisers as appropriate.
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The Group intends that and the terms of the New Structured
Documents have provided that the New VIE Structure will be
unwinded and the Group will directly hold 100% equity interests in
the Landholding Company and/or the Land and the Properties when
the Foreign Ownership Restrictions no longer exist.

Details of the New VIE Structure were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 June 2021.

Lease of Land and Properties in Cambodia

On 11 December 2023, Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.
("MFEC") and Teng Xun Limited (“Teng Xun”) (both wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company) (the “Lessees”) and the Landholding
Company entered into the 2024 Lease Agreements, under which the
Landholding Company agreed to lease the land and properties
located at Veal Vong Village, Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu Province, Cambodia (comprising 73,527.78
square metres of land and 35,770.89 square metres of building floor
area) (the “Leased Land and Properties”) to the Lessees upon the
terms and conditions under the two agreements respectively, at
US$111,485.10 in aggregate per month (inclusive of VAT and other
applicable taxes) with the rental rate of leased land being US$0.6 per
square metre, while the rental rate of leased land with building being
US$1.6 per square metre, commencing on 1 January 2024 and
remaining effective up to and inclusive of 31 December 2025. Unless
otherwise specified, capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the announcement dated 11 December 2023.

Historically, the Lessees have been leasing land and properties from
the Landholding Company to use as production facilities, office
premises, warehouses, function rooms, dormitories and employee
canteens, and the Group intended to continue with this leasing
arrangement through the entering into of the 2024 Lease
Agreements and leasing the Leased Land and Properties.

Since under the New Structured Documents, the Landholding
Company is held by Mr. CHING Tsun Wah as to 51%, the
Landholding Company is a connected person. Accordingly, the
entering into of the 2024 Lease Agreements constituted connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Since the 2024 Lease Agreements were entered into within 12
months of each other, they were required to be aggregated for the
purpose of determining the Listing Rules implications under Rule
14.22 and Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to HKFRS 16 (Leases), the 2024 Lease Agreements were
recognised by the Lessees as right-of-use assets with an aggregate
amount (inclusive of VAT and other applicable taxes) of
approximately US$2,499,000 as at 1 January 2024, and the leasing
was regarded as an addition of right-of-use assets by the Lessees.
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Shareholders should note that the above aggregate amount was
unaudited and may be subject to adjustment in the future. The
right-of-use assets represent the Lessees’ rights to use the Leased
Land and Properties over the lease term, and the leased liability
represents the obligation of the Lessees to make lease payments (i.e.,
the rent). The asset and the liability arising from the Leases are
initially measured on present value basis and calculated by
discounting the lease payments under the Leases, using the
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
aggregated amount of the right-of-use assets recognised by the
Lessees in connection with the 2024 Lease Agreements exceeds 0.1%
but all of them are less than 5.0%, the 2024 Lease Agreements and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but were exempted from
the circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Details of the lease of Leased Land and Properties were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 11 December 2023.

Related Party Transactions

Except the rental charged by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial Company to
the Group constitute continuing connected transactions, which are
fully exempted from the relevant requirements of reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, none of the other significant
related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023

BRBHFIE  LH@BEREEZ  HRNA
BTUAE -EREEERZFEAHEARE
EMNEREELHEYEZERN  mMEE
BEEZFARANEEMNK (AMES)
ZET HEELACZEENRBEVSRAE
FHE WEBEREEEENEELMREK
MREER T ZHENRGE -

HARZERBEAR S NEHE T EER
ZIERAEEEASE s —EHXZHEBRAAS L
EiBiE0.1%  BEEIHEMN5.0%  r At =F
—MEHEREAEBETRET IR SHHEE
FEMRBFBLUAZEZBHRRELAERTE - #
ERrETAN(EERBIVBER) KB
NERAEZIRE °

HEHELT W EMEZFBEINRARAH
AT _=F+_A+—B2ZzRE-

BBLXS

HESBEXEARMASEKRESEXS
BERAERS HE2EHRREBET EHRANE
UAZEEBRR  AE  BEREBZRRIL
ERRIE BRIt 29N - 4R A B RS IR R M 5E35
S AEBREE S -_=F+_f=+—
BIEFEEFYZEMERBEH AR ZHTE
K ETREBIFI4AAZE T 2 BER H e ERH
B G o

EERA QAR EEBEBRD
HEROREEREZEZRXE

RZTZ=F+ZA=+—H FFRAR
AREEAEEEE (EXRBSFLMEK
5] (T3 7 R B E & B ]) EXVED) 2B fn - 48
B R ERES  BERLARERF LY
EHROIFEI2HBATHEZ2ELMPUCR
B EMRAMECCEMBETAESTETE
# R HRESTRD ([BESFRI) BAAR
BIRBERPT  HEsm RORBIT



Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares

Number of Shares held
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REROREBROD2ER

BEERMEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total 31 December 2023
R=ZB==F
+=HA=+-—8H
ERITRG
& A ¥ = EY 3 EE R (734,262,6978%)
BEElR (B=EBA) (BEER) (ZEEEER) ot 2B E DL
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 22,690,000 - 197,666,200 220,356,200 30.01%
BEELEE (Notes 1 & 2)
(HtaE1X2)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 - 32,499,600 36,499,600 4.97%
BRI AE (Note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. LIU Zigang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200 24,057,200 3.28%
21l 5¢ &= (Note 3)
(H1#3)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - 4,509,000 0.61%
BleELAE (Note 4)
(Hiit4)
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 32,499,600 4.43%
BeR W )5 22 &= (Note 2)
(Htaz2)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
FLERHE K A&
Mr. Ng Bo Kwong 600,000 - - 600,000 0.08%
SRR A
Notes: Hiat -

1.

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, 1.
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which was 2.
owned as to 50%, 19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was 3.
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of 4.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

SRR ERE R AR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified by any Director, the interests and short positions of the
substantial shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares
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Number of Shares held
BERAEE
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Corporate Interests (734,262,697
Interests Interests Interests  (interests of Shares)
(beneficial  (interests of (beneficial controlled as at
Name owner) spouse) owner)  corporation) Total 31 December 2023
R=Bz=%
TZR=1-H
BRTRA
fAAEE RikEL EEER (734,262,6971%)
2R/ th% (BREEA) (RE#Ez) (BRERA) @t ZBNE
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (#/#7)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 220,356,200 - - 220,356,200 30.01%
BRRUL(fiH1)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 44,625,000 - - 66,174,000 110,799,000 15.08%
David Michael WEBB%: & (#7:2)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 66,174,000 - 66,174,000 9.01%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#7:22)
Notes: B -
1. 165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, which 1. 165,166,6004% %17 B3 Prosper Well International

was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise
Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 22,690,000 Shares. Ms. LO Kit Ling,
being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to be interested in the
220,356,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai interested.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023

Limited# A MZ A A HATEEFRAQF
FTHEREBELEZEAHS © 32,499,6008% %
1 i Targetwise Trading Limited 4 * Mz 2
AIRIEE B A A ER30.77%H - IRE5EB %L
A JRE 2R A22,690,0000% ) o EEE
THAREBAENER WEARESEL
A RAEZEH220,356,200/% A% (7 P B Rz o



2. Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event
on 3 December 2021 received by the Company, 66,174,000 Shares were
held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was wholly-owned by
Mr. David Michael WEBB, and Mr. David Michael WEBB beneficially held
44,625,000 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2023 were received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations” of this
report, as at 31 December 2023, so far as it was known by or
otherwise notified by any Director, none of the substantial
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), had any
interest or short positions in Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme was to enable the Board to grant options to
selected employees (whether full time or part time, including the
Directors) of any member of the Group as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme was effective during the period of ten years
commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on which the Share
Option Scheme become unconditional) and the Share Option Scheme
was expired on 1 November 2017. On expiry of the Share Option
Scheme, no further option shall be granted but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Options Scheme shall remain in force. All
share options granted and accepted prior to such expiry continued to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms and terms of
the Share Option Scheme. The last batch of outstanding share
options under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed on 4 September
2022, and hence no outstanding options exist under the Share
Option Scheme from 4 September 2022 onwards.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award
Scheme in which the Group’s employees, Directors, consultants or
advisers will be entitled to participate. The objectives of the Share
Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain
eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable incentives to attract and
retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance of
operations and future development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no Shares were acquired
from the market by the independent trustee of the Share Award
Scheme (Bank of Communications Trustee Limited), which is
independent and not connected with the Company. The number of
Shares available for grant under the Share Award Scheme as at 1
January 2023 and as at 31 December 2023 were 10,424,000 Shares
and 10,424,000 Shares respectively. No Shares have been granted to
eligible persons up to the date of this report under the Share Award
Scheme since its adoption.
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Subject to the scheme rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion select any eligible
person for participation in the Share Award Scheme as a selected
person, and grant such number of awarded Shares to any selected
person at no consideration and in such number and on and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may in its absolute discretion
determine.

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of Shares which may be awarded to a selected person under
the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the
scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject
to any early termination as may be determined by the Board, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
years commencing on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 September 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of
this report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contract of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries;
nor for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
were entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Award Scheme” of
this report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into or subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued Shares was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made
donations amounting to approximately HK$1.9 million.

AUDITORS

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREREE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise accountability and
transparency, direct and regulate the business ethical conduct of the
Company to protect and uphold the best interest of the Shareholders
and stakeholders and achieve sustainability.

The Company applies the “Corporate Governance Code” as set out
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) to establish its
corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has complied
with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code, except the
deviation of code provision C.2.1 that the Board has not appointed
an individual to the post of chief executive officer up to the date of
this report and the role of the chief executive officer has been
performed collectively by all the Executive Directors, including the
Chairman of the Company. The Board considers that this
arrangement allows contributions from all Executive Directors with
different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company’s policies and strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan

Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit

Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the
aforesaid service contracts or letters of appointment may be
terminated by either party giving written notice in accordance with
the terms of service contracts or letters of appointment. All the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING
Chi Fai and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

character and integrity;

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Group’s business and corporate
strategy;

potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director
and/or committee member and other directorships and
significant commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
for achieving the Board'’s diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;
and

independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The
selected individual(s) will be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her initial appointment as Director(s) in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as
a Director at a general meeting of the Company, the
qualification of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the
Nomination Committee and then by the Board based on the
selection criteria of the nomination policy. The Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of such
proposed election as Director(s) at the general meeting of the
Company.
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Re-election of Director(s)

o The Nomination Committee shall review and determine
whether the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection
criteria of the nomination policy and make recommendation
for the Board’s consideration. The Board shall then make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director(s) at the annual general
meeting.

Board diversity

Summary of the Board diversity policy and measurable
objectives

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach
to diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to
enhance its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognise diversity at Board level as an
essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Nomination Committee and the Board will also take into
account factors based on the Group’s business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Diversified perspective

The following table illustrates the Board’s composition as at 31
December 2023:

BEHEEE

. REZESHRIMATREESER
BNNARBBEME 2 BEER
VHETEZSFLEE -BEEEH
IRBERBEASLHEREELE
HRBRELZ -

EEgmEZ L

%ﬁéﬁé%i%ﬂ%ﬁgﬁﬂﬁé
ARRZEFTEXNB L TLBRET RER
EEeXEZTz 8 - ARB—HBR
RAEARERER TSR ZARENR "
AEREEEEREENS TIERBER BT
BENERTR HZITEEEEEEKE
Zrlt BRETRRMER  Fik  XER
REER HEK BXELR R MaEX
RFEH - RRZBEREFTENHREN
SEZEGBEARITRZHERTEEERS
BEE SEBEMEREAZRERAA
EZSTRZARBMIERE

ZTILE

TRIWTARZEZ=Z=F+_A=+—H2ZE
= BHAMK :

Designation ED NED INED
L) e T B
1 :
Gender Male Female
14 5 St g
.,
Age group 40-49 50-59 > 60
F AR 40%49 50%E59 603k A
:
Length of service (years) <5 6-10 > 11
BRBEH (F) SKIAT 6Z=10 T18A E
; :

ED: Executive Director
NED: Non-Executive Director
INED: Independent Non-Executive Director

Our ten Directors with different educational background possess
diversified expertise and skills, including industrial, business
management, sales and marketing, accounting and finance, import
and export, hotel development consultancy, strategies development
and management consultancy. The valuable experience and expertise
they have brought to our business are critical for the long-term
growth of the Group.
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The Board and the Nomination Committee considered that the
diversity of the Board is sufficient and that the Board diversity policy
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is effective.

Gender diversity

Our Board currently has one female Director out of ten Directors. The
Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and is committed to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female Board members overtime as and when suitable
candidates are identified. Independent professional search firm(s)
may be engaged as one of the channels to help in identifying
potential successors to the Board for achieving gender diversity, as
and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio in our workforce (including
senior management) was 70% of female and 30% of male. The
current gender diversity of workforce (including senior management)
was appropriate taking into account the business models and
operational needs. We will continually ensure the equal opportunity of
employment, compensation, training and promotion for all staff to be
based on their competence, knowledge, experience and individual
performance, regardless of gender.

Board independence

The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and one of them has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
meet the independence requirements as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Mechanisms for ensuring independent views and input

The Company has in place mechanisms whereby Directors can
express their independent views in different manners through formal
and informal means, including regular Board meetings, the annual
meeting between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, interactions with other Board members (including the
Chairman) outside the boardroom. The Board considered that such
mechanism for the year ended 31 December 2023 is effective.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the
strategic objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the Executive Directors or the senior
management in charge of each division. All Directors (including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors)
have been consulted on all major and material matters and decisions
of the Group.
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The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board
committees, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” below. Matters specifically reserved for the
Board, including convening Shareholders’” meetings, implementing
the Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group’s business
plans and strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budgets and
final accounts, formulating proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions and for increase or reduction of share capital,
determining the Group’s corporate structure, formulating investment
plans as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by the Articles of Association of the Company.

Meetings’ attendance

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee
meetings and annual general meeting of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows:

ESQOREANBRETHTERRZAS
HABHN ITXIEEZES] —H-BE
REBERESS BT ERARABRREHE
HITRRRZER BEEAKENEBTER
RE REAKENFEBRERZ2FKA

B TR B~ 20 KL AR A0 3K R AR AN B 05 2R
#m$¢@ﬁ’]¢% U FlERERE A
RITEADRABERRAAE T 2 H MR
N BEEMBE -

B
BE_T_=Ft+-_HA=+—RHLEFE &
ERARFEZEEH  ZE@gEMERR
BEREHHEFERMT

Number of meetings attended/held

bl 98 S
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Executive  Investment Annual
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ESE  ENZBEE REZEe  EMzEE  #fiZEE  REzZEe RREF
EE EE EE EE EE EE xg
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. CHING Chi Fai REELE 5/5 - 11 0N 44 11 11
Mr. CHING Chi Keung EERE 5/5 - - - 44 - 1
Mr. LIU Zigang £y i 5/5 - - - 44 - o
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRERE 5/5 - - - 44 - /1
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEERE 5/5 - - - 44 i 1
Non-Executive Director FunES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching ReERL 5/5 - - - - - 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan A s 5/5 ElE! - 0N - - i
Mr. NG Bo Kwong Ly i 5/5 33 - 0N - = 1
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson Ay 5/5 ElE! i 0N - - i
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Brlink 5/5 ElE! 1 0 - i i
Total number of meetings held BEIE L 5 3 1 2 4 1 1
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEE
The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination EFegKkUEZEZES BEXLZTE< - %
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee EZE=® - ITEZEehKEEZTE= o

and the Investment Committee.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who have appropriate accounting professional
qualifications and relevant expertise. Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan,
NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson are members of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Group's financial reporting system, risk management system and
internal control procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which are published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 December 2023 are summarised below:

° reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant
statements and reports of the Group, the significant financial
reporting judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and
whether in accordance with the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the applicable accounting

standard;

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;

o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

. reviewed the non-audit services of the external auditors and
the non-audit service fees payable;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external
auditor and the effectiveness of audit process;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

o reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk management
and internal control systems involving financial, operational and
compliance control and internal audit function of the Group;

o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal
auditor and the management’s responses to the findings by
the internal audit function;
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o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan;
and
o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for
audit services was HK$2,880,000 and non-audit services regarding
transfer pricing was HK$777,000.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors as members, namely Messrs. SUN Eric Yung
Tson and KWONG Tony Wan Kit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, which are
published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

The details of the nomination policy during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in the sub-section headed “Nomination
policy” under the section headed “Board of Directors” above.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are summarised below:

J reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy of the Company;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of
directors for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting; and

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. CHING Chi Fai as member and all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan as the Chairman and
Messrs. NG Bo Kwong, SUN Eric Yung Tson and KWONG Tony Wan
Kit as members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and
structure, the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
senior management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities
are set out in the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
which are published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange
and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are summarised below:

. with reference to the prevailing market conditions, considered
and reviewed the remuneration packages, including
discretionary bonus, performance, time commitment and
responsibilities of each Executive Director and the senior
management, adjustments of remuneration of each Executive
Director and the senior management, and recommended for
the Board’s approval;

o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy;
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s fee

of each Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director and recommended for the Board's approval; and

. reviewed the amendments to the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee and recommended for the Board'’s
approval.

The emoluments of the five Executive Directors who are also
regarded as the senior management of the Company are disclosed in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument of the senior management other than the five
Executive Directors by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
as follows:
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is the Chairman and Messrs. CHING Chi Keung,
LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung are members.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general
powers to deal with the daily operations and management of the
Company, including but not limited to, setting up new companies,
opening bank accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the
Common Seal, issue of Shares upon exercise of any subscription or
conversion rights under any share schemes of the Company, warrants
or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHING Chi Fai as the Chairman and Mr. KEUNG Kwok
Hung as member, and one Independent Non-Executive Director,
namely, Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit as member.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to
assess, consider and approve/recommend any potential investments
and/or divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million,
or 5% of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in
aggregate in each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve
each investment/divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not
exceeding 10% of the aforesaid aggregate amount.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Board reviewed and monitored the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, trainings and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the Listing Rules, the compliance of the
Model Code by the Directors and employees, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are
committed to participating any suitable training or reading relevant
materials in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has received from each Director his/her training record
of participation in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2023:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (A)

Type of trainings

EHEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai EEELAE B
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEEEE B
Mr. LIU Zigang 27 M54 B
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah REERE B
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEMEE A, B
Non-Executive Director FEHITES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching PR )5 22+ B
Independent Non-Executive Directors  BIMFHTEE
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan FLERA S AE B
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RIRNITE B
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson IR E B
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit B A, B
Type of trainings: IEEEA -
A: attending webinar(s)/seminar(s) A ’2]‘7!7_/5 et e
B: reading materials B: HEEH
MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES ESETRSXINEETEH

TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific
enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group,
and of results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that
the Group’s financial statements will be published in a timely
manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to 59 of this annual
report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (B)

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness annually. The Group's risk
management and internal control systems includes a well-defined
management structure with limits of authority which is designed for
the achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance of
books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the
business to be addressed by management. At least on an annual
basis, management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities. The Audit
Committee and the Board conduct a review of the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group annually.
The Board appointed a professional consulting firm with the
responsibility to conduct the internal audit function and assess risks
of the Company, and perform the agreed-upon procedures in relation
to the internal controls of the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The review of the systems for the year ended 31 December 2023,
included but not limited to, the Group’s ability to cope with its
business and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal control
systems; the results of internal audit work; the communication with
the Board in relation to result of risks and internal control review; the
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the rules and
regulations. The Audit Committee and the management will follow
up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional consulting firm to
further improve the risk management and internal control systems.
The Board satisfies with the scope of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers that the systems
are effective and adequate.
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Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group discloses inside information to the public in a timely
manner as soon as reasonably practicable, as required by the SFO,
unless such information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Prior to the fully disclosure of inside information
to the public, the Group ensures that the information is kept strictly
confidential. The inside information will only be shared with
employees who have a legitimate need to know and are bound by
confidentiality obligations. If the Group determines that maintaining
the necessary level of confidentiality is not feasible or suspects that
confidentiality may have been compromised, it shall immediately
disclose the inside information to the public. The Group is committed
to ensuring that all information contained in published documents is
not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires equal
disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

A Shareholders communication policy of the Company has been
adopted to ensure that the Shareholders are provided with ready,
equal and timely access to the balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
in the Company to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong.

Corporate communications will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding.

Information on the Company’s website is updated on a regular basis.
Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is also
published on the website of the Company. Such information includes
financial reports, ESG reports, results announcements, circulars and
notices of general meetings and other regulatory disclosures.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. The Company will
use general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate with
Shareholders and allow Shareholders a reasonable opportunity to
pose questions to the Board. Board members, chairmen of Board
committees or their delegates and the external auditor will attend
the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Having considered that the multiple communication channels in place
and properly implemented during the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders communication policy is
effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERRS (B)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by
the Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 81 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
one or more members deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per Share
basis, of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and the resolutions to be added
to the meeting agenda, and signed by the requisitionist(s). If the
Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolution at general meetings under the Articles of Association of
the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting by following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3, 8/F, TML
Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 60 to 152, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment of
the expected credit losses of trade and bills receivables.

Key Audit Matter
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Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables

Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade and
bills receivables amounted to HK$693.0 million, which accounted
for 35.3% of the Group’s total assets. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade and bills receivables.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected credit
losses. Receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on their credit
risk characteristics and assessed collectively for credit losses allowance.
When measuring the expected credit losses, the Group considered
the credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by taking into
consideration current conditions and forward looking factors.

We focused on this area because the assessment of the expected credit
losses is subject to significant management judgement involved in the
estimation of the credit loss allowance.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (F)

BEETERE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In auditing the recognition of credit losses allowance of trade and bills
receivables, we have performed the following key procedures on the
assessment prepared by management.

We obtained an understanding of the management'’s internal control
and assessment process of estimating the expected credit losses
allowances of trade and bills receivables, evaluated and validated the
key controls.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors associated with the accounting estimates for credit loss
allowance of trade and bills receivables.

We assessed the appropriateness of the grouping and the credit losses
provisioning methodology adopted by management, discussed with
management, for the details of their evaluations and challenged the
underlying information referenced by management, which included
comparing with external evidence obtained from independent research
on public available information, as well as forward looking estimates,
performing ageing analysis, examining the historical settlement records
and testing of the subsequent settlements of the customers.

We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of the trade and bills
receivables on a sample basis.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of the
provision for loss allowance.

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of expected credit losses of
trade and bills receivables were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRSE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ho Chun Yu.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
SEEEEER

As at 31 December W+ —=—A=+—H

2023 2022
—EBEC-=fF —EF -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Goodwill EES 9@) 5,397 5,398
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BE L&A 6 393,537 405,964
Right-of-use assets PHAEEE 7(a) 96,759 101,155
Investment properties "EYE 8 45,188 16,638
Intangible assets mEE 9(b) 323 483
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHEE 10 3,059 3,205
Other non-current assets EmIERBEE 15 8,475 6,684
Investment in an associated company R—EBE R MR E 5,363 5,463
Investments in joint ventures REEREMIRE 208 116
Other financial assets at amortised cost ~ Z#EKX AT 2 EMEREE 14 3 25
Total non-current assets I REBEEHE 558,312 545,131
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 11 329,086 260,176
Other current assets HEMmEEE 15 66,426 50,405
Tax recoverable A B 7% 18 677 370
Other financial assets at amortised cost IR ARFIBE 2 HMth & BEE 14 9,320 14,101
Amounts due from joint ventures e E &I 35 763 522
Amount due from an associated company J& 4k — & B & A 5] 708 13 3,822 2,848
Trade and bills receivables EWE SEREFNEE 12 609,771 558,835
Pledged bank deposit BRI 16 11,958 11,717
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EBEER 17 375,093 305,356
Total current assets REEEHARE 1,406,916 1,204,330
Total assets EEARE 1,965,228 1,749,461
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAQFEF A
Company PEfL R
Share capital & 7K 20 7,343 7,343
Reserves fE 1,206,694 1,151,762
Final dividend proposed BEAHRE 32 36,713 22,028
1,250,750 1,181,133
Non-controlling interests JEVE R E = (57,534) (49,652)
Total equity BER 1,193,216 1,131,481

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

| Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEBEBR(E)
As at 31 December R+—-HA=+—H

2023 2022
—s=-= ==

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

ok TH T TET
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISTR AR 10 9,593 5,602
Other non-current payables E M IE R B FE FRIA 23 9,023 9,967
Borrowings BEE 21 2,164 2,206
Lease liabilities HEBE 7(a) 2,636 3,834

_ Total non-current liabilites  #r@B&af&®E 00 23416 21,609
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JERTE B BRI 22 282,462 168,318
Accruals and other payables JESHE A R H AL BT 5B 23 366,932 277,273
Current income tax liabilities BIERFRS R aE 29,007 19,390
Borrowings BE 21 47,081 108,547
Lease liabilities HEBaE 7(a) 5,680 5,166
Loans from non-controlling interests KEFEERERCE R 24 17,211 17,486
Dividends payable FEAT AR B 223 191
_ Total current liabilites ~ wBRf#s® 7485% 596,371

Total liabilities BEEHAE 772,012 617,980
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,965,228 1,749,461

FOORI2BEMIREMBEHRENR S _NF =
B-+tHHEKSSeMETHUTESEAR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 152 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2024 and were signed on its

behalf. HE o
CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE BRE
Director Director
EZE EZE

AEERBREEREN 2 M E—5f

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e E WS R

For the year ended 31 December HZE+-—A=+—HLFE

2023 2022

—E-=f B &

Note HK$'000 HK$’'000

Kz TET FET

Revenue A 5 2,067,273 1,793,025

Cost of sales HEKAK 25 (1,565,529) (1,368,212)

Gross profit EF 501,744 424,813

Other income HA A 26 10,958 12,758

Distribution costs DA 25 (233,642) (216,575)

Administrative expenses THFEX 25 (136,512) (113,816)
Net reversal of impairment losses/ SREEREEEBRER,

(impairment losses) on financial assets (REEsE) FE 25 1,515 (15,347)
Operating profit R F 144,063 91,833
Finance income B TSI A 28 5,916 593
Finance costs B 78k 7R 28 (6,250) (4,718)
Share of profit of an associated company FE(G—BB L DT E A 253 511
Share of profit/(loss) of joint ventures =y %ﬁ%xmﬂ/(ﬁiﬂéﬁ) 92 (207)
Net fair value change on investment properties & &M ¥ v A EE F F5 8 - 1,974
Profit before income tax 5E‘|‘Fﬁ S %t AR 144,074 89,986
Income tax expenses BHFEX 30 (48,443) (20,144)
Profit for the year FEER 95,631 69,842
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hin 2@ (FE) Wi
Item that may be subsequently HENEENAHAE

reclassified to profit or loss fﬁﬁﬁZ EH
Currency translation differences EEREES (9,434) (23,424)
Item that will not be subsequently RESBTEEFHIHE

reclassified to profit or loss BmlHH
Revaluation gain upon transfer from HWE  BERREBA

property, plant and equipment to REMERZ

investment properties EXRTE 11,730 -
Total comprehensive income FEXAWGAE

for the year 97,927 46,418
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: ~ FE{EFEERA /(&) :

Owners of the Company KRARIEAAN 104,181 75,511

Non-controlling interests RS (8,550) (5,669)

95,631 69,842
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEEE2EKE (BE)

for the year attributable to: M

Owners of the Company ARFHEBA 105,809 49,914

Non-controlling interests RV I 2 (7,882) (3,496)

97,927 46,418
Earnings per share attributable to owners A2QFEE ABEEREF

of the Company (expressed in HK cents)  (LAEALFIR)

Basic HAK 31(a) 14.4 10.4

Diluted BE 31(b) 14.4 10.4

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be  F it 45 & 2 Uk 25 35 & B2 5 [ff =2 Bt 5% — 6F
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BIE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

e Em PR

For the year ended 31 December #HE+-—A=+—HLFE

RAAER AL
Shares held
for share
award Other Non-
Share  scheme (the Share reserves controlling Total
capital  "Scheme”) premium (Note 18) Sub-total interests equity
RLvE!
il ([5)) RftRf .
kx  BEZRfR k#EE (18 Nt FRRER fEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Tihn TR TEL T THL Tn
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-BE--E-B-RAzis 7,343 (6,051) 613,261 526,049 1,140,602 (46,156) 1,094,446
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHi/ (§8)
Profit{oss) for the year RERHT/ (B8) - - - 75511 75,511 (5,669) 69,842
Other comprehensive (loss) ~ HHi2E (F8)/
income g
Currengy ranslation differences ~ SHEEZE - - - (25,597) (25,597) 2173 (23424
Total comprehensive income/ ~~ 2EUE/ (HB)
(loss) g - - - 49914 49,914 (3.496) 46,418
Transactions with owners in their EEAAETZR 5
capacity as owners (AEBASH)
Interim dividend relatingt0 2022 —E--EE 74 ERE - - - (7,238) (7,238) - (7,238)
Purchase of shares for the Scheme Bzt EIE A 2 il - (2,145) - - (2,145) - 2,145)
Balance at 31 December 2022 ~ WZE-ZE+-A=+-AvEH 7343 (8,19) 613,261 568,725 1,181,133 (49,652) 1,131,481
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZB-=E-R-B2&H 7343 (8,196) 613,261 568,725 1,181,133 (49,652) 1,131,481
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2E W/ (§8)
Profit/loss) for the year REEER/ (B8) - - - 104,181 104,181 (8,550) 95,631
Other comprehensive (loss)/ ~ E4i27 (§8) /
income L6
Currency translation differences EHMfEEE - - - (10,102) (10,102) 668 (9,434)
Revaluation gain upon transfer from €412 « BERREEA
property, plant and equipmentto  ZENERZ
investment properties (Note 8) EfbhE s - - - 11,730 11,730 - 11,730
Total comprehensiveincome/ 2K/ (§i8)
o los) i S o T L R . S a8 o8
Transactions with owners in their SEH AET 2R 5
capacity as owners (AEBASH)
Final dividend relating to 2022 TECCEERERE
(Note 32) (W) - - - (21,715) (21,715) - (21,719)
Interim dvidend relating t0 2023~ —E-=£E 7R EHRE
(Note 32) (W) - - - (14,477) (14.477) - (14,477)
Balance at 31 December 203 ~ MZZF-ZETZA=t-AzkH 7383 (8,196) 613,261 638342 1,250,750 (57,534) 1,193,216

bt R A B B ) AR R B BE PN 2 B R — F

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l-_r\ EE@/)“JE%E

For the year ended 31 December HZE+-—A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FTET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Cash generated from operations 40 AK e 2 S AE T8 33(a) 273,679 130,440
Interests paid Eﬁﬂ (6.250) (4,718)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (E%Z)/E Bl TS %X (38,773) 4,032
Net cash generated from RETHABHESER
____operating activites 228,656 129,754
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A Y% - E LB E (57.611) (24,209)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEBTEE (470) (805)
Purchases of right-of-use assets BAGCHEEE (2,540) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - FiE MRE
plant and equipment Fr 58 5K18 33(b) 520 337
Interests received B U F B 5,916 593
Receipts from government grants ST B R A 4 B 776 441
Dividends received from an associated Bl —EEE QA
company A% 8 124 -
__Netcash used in investing activities ~ REZBAAREFE (53285) (23.643)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of shares for the Scheme METBIBA 2R 19(b) - (2,145)
Proceeds from borrowings & Eﬁﬁ%%’x 33(c) 33,149 5,000
Repayments of borrowings EBEES 33(c) (94,636) (35,476)
Principal elements of lease payments HENZHEE M 33(c) (5.591) (5,822)
Dividends paid to the Company's ERNERGRERE
shareholders (36,160) (7,231)
Proceeds from loan from non-controlling REJFERERER
interests TSR 33(c) - 286
Repayments of loan from non-controlling Y= #Pfﬂﬂ wEXRZ
interests EENIE 33(c) (172) -
__Netcash used in financing activites ~ BMEZBfAREFE = (103410 (45,388)
Net increase in cash and ReRBESZEEER
cash equivalents BinFEE 71,961 60,723
Cash and cash equivalents FYNBRESREAS
at the beginning of the year £HEIER 305,356 251,164
Exchange loss on cash and RekHAEFEEHD
cash equivalents (R =pi=| (2,224) (6,531)
Cash and cash equivalents FRNEERES
at the end of the year ZEEB 17 375,093 305,356
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Fili4: & I8 & ik & 5 FE BB W 2 M55 — 6f
conjunction with the accompanying notes. FHIE -

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products,
trading of operating supplies and equipment and manufacturing
and trading of health care and hygienic products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 May
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered
address is at the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman
Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 25 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)  Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have
been prepared in accordance to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

HKFRSs comprise the following authoritative literature:

° Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
° Hong Kong Accounting Standards

o Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

RAEEERERERAR |

e R ERR M

—RER

IR ERAERAR ([AAR]) A
BIREZERAR  HMBAR I 2RE
SUERHEEERERBER HESL
BRmARE ARRENHEREH
BREERM e

ARABEBEFASEHES R RDE (KB R
TR ERTA-ThABEREFHST
MR REREEREERR - Ak
#iHt AMaples Corporate Services Limited,
PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands#y3#
FhR e

ARAREBBARSHERA (B
R ) EREATE— L -

BB TIEIN W ELRE M RERTIIE
FHET(TFAETDINE - F4ERE M5
BERENVN_ZE_WMF=A_THHESE
=g ([EFg))EREE-

REEERSTBEEE

2.1 REEE

() BFEEHHEREER
R & E( L GIHEDY)
KRR REWB AR (58
[REE]) Wiz s B igsRE
DRESEHMAE ([FA
IR A®]) B 2B B
HEmEER ([BEEMBERS
ZERBI]) BA R B R mHEBY
FNREMBEAFERER
%‘Yo

BEMBREEBEAT
R SURR -

s FAUBHEER
o FHEEER

e FAEBAHBAETHE
e

R FFR

65



66

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eﬁﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁuf (n,\)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
investment properties, which were measured at fair
value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards at its annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments
to HKAS 8

- International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
— amendments to HKAS 12

= Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — amendments
to HKAS 12

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group. These
amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

| Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy

Change in accounting policy on offsetting
arrangement in long service payment scheme in
Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be effective
from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the
Amendment Ordinance, any accrued benefits attributable to
the employer's mandatory contributions under mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would
no longer be eligible to offset against its obligations on long
service payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued
on or after the Transition Date. There is also a change in the
calculation basis of last monthly wages for the portion of the
LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical expedient
in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “practical expedient”) to
account for the offsetable MPF Benefits as deemed employee
contributions to reduce the current service costs in the period
in which the related services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications
of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” (the “Guidance”) which provides clarified and detailed
guidance on the accounting considerations relating to the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified
that following the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance,
LSP is no longer a ‘simple type of contributory plans’ to which
the practical expedient had been intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore changed
its accounting policy and ceased to apply the practical
expedient and reattribute the deemed employee contributions
on a straight-line basis from the date when services by
employees first lead to their benefits in terms of the LSP
legislation in accordance with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a).

The abovementioned change in accounting policy does not
have any impact to the consolidated financial statements as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (refer
to Note 2.3.1(iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has investments
in joint ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (refer to Note 2.3.1(iv)
below), after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(iv)  Equity accounting (Continued)

v)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in accordance
with the policy described in Note 2.3.8.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VAP

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

v)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 RREREERSTHEREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23 EASBEME @)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.2 Business combinations 232 XL G

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

3 fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.2 Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently re-measured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.3.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.4 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year-end
exchanges rate are generally recognised in profit
or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Group companies (Continued)

o all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group'’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial year in which they
are incurred.

Freehold land that has an indefinite useful life are
not subject to depreciation and is tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost over its estimated
useful lives of 20 years.

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost over their estimated useful lives, at the
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements Shorter of 10 years or

lease period

Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction including
borrowing costs attributable to the construction during
the period of construction. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use.

2.3.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. Subsequently, it is
carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined annually by external valuer. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices from less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuer with changes in fair values recorded in
profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant
and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses
a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
profit or loss.

2

BEMBHERRME (F)

RAEERSTHEREH @

23 EAESBEME @)

235 Y%« BERZE (&)

& B & B IR T 1S IR AR
HEMNZRET  IRER

EETIREEEPAEFR
KZME -BERERE T
12 A A RLRL B B 1R 51 B © BX
ABEEREIRKA (BRE
RIRETHRRE TR
EEREK) REBEES
TRAERERSZA T8
AR TRIFLITERE -

236 REY#

AEBRESRHAES KA
HBEARTHESME R E N
RBEEYERERZMELR

BREWMEN T ARG
B BRHEBIZXZKAE-
Hig REMERERFET
B RINBEEMESFME
EZNATE- - R FERE
BHEERAKE LEA
FERRERNEEZEE
HEESGR I ZE RAF AR -
fid XIS U T EE R - K
SEAZREMATEES
EMBEERIEEMRE
MR ERHRIRR
TRERAF HER/ES
F AR SMNE B E A AN PA A AT
A B~ FEZ A AR

(EEZERN V=Y E =R g=
AlZRENEREBNKRE
ERAFENIMNEZENE
wHEM - AWM HAFE
Y 2k 7% 5T A B R (B & 1B B
[l - A% et B e R o

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K

77



78
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AN

N

2

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.7 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.2.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs")
for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, being
the operating segments (Note 5).

2.3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.9 Financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FvOCI™).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Financial assets are derecognised when

the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii)

Measurement

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair

value

plus, in the case of a financial asset not

at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction

costs

of financial asset carried at FVPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2

RAEERSTHEREH @)

23 EASBEME @)

239 T EE (&)

(ii)

(iir)

RS R AR L AT
EHEBEERLENS
BMEENX 7 HER
% B AN 5 [ AR W
BREEEEER - &
BREREERS R
EZHENMEEMNKSE
EMAKEC EEZ
RemMEERAELZ
N N
B ARcREESN
HHER -

e
AEBRAFEM (5t
WIRE N FERT ABR®E
(MR FEF AR
ZEBMEEMS) W
TRMEEERELL
RPRAFTESHE
E - BFEst A
LEMEERHKA
RIBERASEHE

EHETA

BB TAEZHEETE
TTHARAEEE R
BEZEBEARE
EZHRERERE &
BLTAEAZO B E=
E=tE5E5R :

(1) HHERAR
BWEBEHRE
me (MzERe
MEMER/AE
R R B mEs
BzBERE
AT E - it
FLRMEEZAN
B ERER
M ERFT AT
WA o &IETER
EAZ EKE
KEBTTEER
B R - RE
BERGEE2E
Wes KRB 25
~S—{EEA -



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l‘/j—\l/:l\ﬁji%¥&‘%:zmjni (AA)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

@)

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate
method. Impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from
an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments (“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the Group measures the expected credit loss as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit loss.

2.3.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.11 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
bills and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and bills receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade and bills receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade and bills receivable are uncollectible, they
are written off against the allowance account for trade
and bills receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited in profit or loss.

23.12 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.3.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.3.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
company and its subsidiaries, associated company and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(=)

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. The deferred
income tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming
the property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary income differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l‘/j—\l/:l\ﬁji%¥&‘%:zmjni (AA)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.3.16 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render
the related services are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision, where appropriate, is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is
recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled
within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is
not a defined contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
relevant government authorities for its employees
in the PRC and contribute to these plans based
on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the
relevant government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these
plans.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Pension obligations (Continued)

v)

The group companies in participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’
salaries, up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per
employee per month. The assets of MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the group
companies in an independently administered
fund.

There were no forfeited contributions (by
employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions)
to offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employee without possibility of
withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after balance
sheet date are discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(vi) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares or options) of the
Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the shares
or options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the shares or options
granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and;

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(vi) Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium.

When the options are cancelled during vesting
periods, the Group recognises immediately
the amount that otherwise would have been
recognised for services received over the
remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will
include the incremental fair value granted in
the measurement of the amount recognised for
services received as consideration for the equity
instruments granted. The incremental fair value
granted is the difference between the fair value
of the modified equity instrument and that of the
original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification
occurs during the vesting period, the incremental
fair value granted is included in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received
over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments
vest, in addition to the amount based on the grant
date fair value of the original equity instruments,
which is recognised over the remainder of the
original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value
granted is recognised immediately.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AN

Fi)

2

(=)

MBmEAME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation of the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.3.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminated sales within the Group.

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has accepted the products,
the collection of the related consideration is probable
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals and
other payables as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

2

WEEER ST BESE @

(Continued)

2.3.19 Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match it with the costs that it is intended to

compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and

23 EXSTHEME @)

equipment and service concession arrangement is
included in accruals and other payables and is credited
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.3.20 Leases
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments (if applicable):

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 RREREERSTHEREH @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23 EXRSTHEME @)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.20 Leases (Continued) 230 HE (&)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received, nature of the lease assets and
the terms and conditions of the leases, such as the lease
periods and geographical locations.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following (if applicable):

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o prepayment;
o any initial direct costs; and

© restoration costs.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.3.20 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies

2.4.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.4.2 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4.3 Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.

2.4.4 Rental income

Rental income from investment properties are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

2.4.5 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

2.4.6 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from
the market by the Scheme (Note 19(b)), the total
consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) is
presented as shares held for the Scheme and deducted

from total equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

2.4.7 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.4.8 Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Trademarks, investment in club debentures
and software licences

Separately acquired trademarks, investment in
club debenture and software licences are shown
at historical cost. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks,
investment in club debenture and software
licences over their estimated useful lives of 5 to
10 years.

Operating licence

Operating licence acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. It has a finite useful life and is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the operating
licence of 2 years.

2

REEERSTTEEREE @

24 HSstBERBE @)
2.4.7 IR.E 7k

AARRRBRERDIK 2B SR
R BEARNRBRRKES (4
ER)HERRERAEE R
ARBZHBERRPERR
BE-

248 BB & E

(i)

(ir)

RAEEERERERAR |

BIE  BHESFRK
ERE 17712

ERWENEIST 8
BHERE R
BELRAIE - 1F
BEAERFHER
I H 1 2 B AR R 5T
B E SR AR R -

BTy B E S AR
& R EFEEAIER
FHSE10F N o g
= 2MEHFKRE R
(B S = 0)N

EE

REBEHKESH
e RERKER
HMORFEER - %ZF
BEMNAERFHAR
K R R
B H SR BB R -

IR & R TR RO B 5K TR

HEENRAER
SHEHE -

R FFR

97



98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBEEME (&)

g A

W

3

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

(=)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars (“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ does not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.

At 31 December 2023, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$4,367,000 (31
December 2022: approximately HK$4,457,000) higher
or lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of RMB denominated net
payables of the group entities with HK$ as their
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$16,634,000 (31
December 2022: approximately HK$14,743,000)
lower or higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
differences on translation of US$ denominated net
receivables of the group entities with RMB as their
functional currency.

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
and lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

3

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the simulations performed, if there is a 100
basis-point shift, the post-tax profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$171,000 (31 December
2022: approximately HK$1,001,000) higher or lower,
mainly as a result of change in interest rates on pledged
bank deposit and borrowings at variable interest rate.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposit, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, as well as
credit exposures to trade and bills receivables and other
financial assets at amortised cost.

(1) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors at 31 December
2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

)

N

BEMBHERRME (F)

3 H¥EARERE@m

Bt 7 JE B (R & (@)
(v) 1EEREE &)

(a)

Risk management (Continued) (1) EREE (&)
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—EBE-=fF —_=E=——
Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised
HES FEERSE 2 A EEREE A
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHERT FHETT FHETT
A 75,000 74,473 65,000 64,023
B 43,000 42,878 44,000 43,084
C 39,000 38,792 45,000 43,047
D 35,000 34,237 37,000 34,861
E 33,000 32,769 31,000 30,482
Impairment of financial assets 2) ZHEEHE
Trade and bills receivables, amount due from RNEBHEES R ZIE

an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group are
subject to the expected credit losses model. While
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit
and other financial assets at amortised cost are
also subject to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

RAEEERERERAR |

WEBERANER &
Y — fE Bt & 2 B R IR
REd & EBERIA
ARBEHMEEEBRER
AE-ReRkBREEE
HA CEMRITER
PAR IR SH R AR D BR 2
Hitb & B E E IR B
BB B HE ERFEI
SOMERTE - HEEH
BB E RS 1E B N

JENY — I & R AR
REKE SR EHE

AEBEEREBVER
SHERESRAEFAH
EEBBRZBHTE
HEWE SRR RE
IR R F)
FIANREWA LB ER
B RRAREFERNZ
BHIEREME - A5 H
2B B Jo 5= B8 A —
PrETEFREMEEER -

R FFR

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

)

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

3

B 7% L B B BB ()

Bt 7% JEL B (Rl & ()
(v) 1ZER& &)

(a)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 2) ZHEEREGE)
Measurement of expected credit loss on individual %6 I E E 5 & 78 B
basis EEEE
The receivables relating to customers with known B %0 38 B B 2 sk
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on W [ e Ui 3k 0B Bk B TE A
collection of receivables are assessed individually BARBZEFLIEHA
for provision for impairment. As at 31 December B EWCERIE - Ty bR E
2023, the balance of credit loss allowance in BEERFTE RN F
respect of individually assessed receivables was —=Ft+ - A=+—
approximately HK$73,094,000 (31 December H - Bz (R BT FE
2022: approximately HK$83,462,000). WHRIEE M EEEE
1 5 #5 £24973,094,000
prL (2=
+TZRA=+—H:4
83,462,000/ 7T) °
The following table presents the gross carrying TREINRZ-ZZE=-=
amount and the credit loss allowance in respect FR-IBEZ_F+ =
of the individually assessed receivables as at 31 A=+—H@BFHE
December 2023 and 2022: & U 5K IR 2 Bk AR fE
REEERES
2023 2022
—E_=F —EC-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Gross carrying amount RE2E 73,094 83,462
Credit loss allowance EEEERG (73,094) (83,462)
Credit net carrying amount EEREFE - -
Measurement of expected credit loss on collective EEREES SRR
basis EEEE

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on the
credit risk characteristics and assessed collectively
for credit losses allowance. When measuring the
expected credit losses, the Group considered the
credit losses incurred in the past, and adjusted by
taking into consideration current conditions and
forward looking factors.

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of credit loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$10,103,000 (31
December 2022: approximately HK$10,732,000)
based on expected credit loss rates up to 4.50%
(2022: 4.58%) applied on different groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

v)

(2)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis (Continued)
Impairment and reversal of impairment losses
on receivables are presented as “net reversal
of impairment losses/(impairment losses) on
financial assets” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit
and other financial assets at amortised cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposit and other
financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: same).

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$375,093,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$305,356,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

ot 7 [ B B X ()
(a) Bi7% & b R & (@)

(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) mEEZEE (&)
Specifically, as at 31 December 2023, for borrowings EBm=s RN_ZT - =
which contained repayment on demand clauses which +—A=+—R8 m®esA
could be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the mBERKEEEX (ATHIEBIT
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities. PHRBSATITE HEE
The analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest mME GHEEHFSEAER
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that BEE oM AEET]
is if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights Be B S Eh iy x B HARS (BD
to call the loans with immediate effect (2022: same). PE AN BRI 2| B (R

RFAFE) BRRE R
(ZF=ZF: @R) -
Between Between
On  Lessthan 1and 2 and Over
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
122% 225%
REXEE 1R 28 28 SEHN L b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THET TEL THL THEL TR THEL
At 31 December 2023 R-B==fF
t=R=+-H
Bank borrowings RITfEE
— principal portion -re#n 47,081 - - - - 47,081
Other borrowings EfhfsE
— principal portion -re#n - - 98 m 1,295 2,164
Lease liabilties HEaRk - 5,885 2,624 50 - 8,559
Trade payables ENESER - 282,462 - - - 282,462
Accruals and B ERR
other payables MR - 127,110 - - - 127,110
Loans from non-controlling REFERER
interests ZEF 17,211 - - - - 17,211
Dividends payable ERRE - 223 - - - 23
At 31 December 2022 \—B-—F&
t=R=t-H
Bank borrowings FIEE
~ principal portion S ) 108,323 10 - - - 108,333
Other borrowings EffaE
~ principal portion -re#n - 214 276 751 1,179 2,420
Lease liabilties HERE - 5,574 3423 546 - 9,543
Trade payables ENBSER - 168,318 - - - 168,318
Accruals and EHEAR
other payables HiERFE - 94,075 - - - 94,075
Loans from non-controlling REFERER
interests 2B 17,486 - - - - 17,486
Dividends payable JER RS - 191 - - - 191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

BEMBHERRME (F)

3 H¥EARERE@m

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BiEEZE @
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) ) FEEzEEE)
The table below analyses the borrowings of the Group TEBEBREERESHNE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining HAMS THREOmASE
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual SDHEEHBED AR E
maturity date without taking into consideration the B ErhWES RIEERE
effect of repayment on demand clauses, while interest = 1@;@@%% i ¥ B A 2%
payments are computed using contractual rates. SHFEEE o
Between Between
Within 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
(EFES 285%
15/ A | A | SENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THER THER THER
As at 31 December 2023 R-Z-=F
tZA=t-H
Borrowings: BE:
— principal portion -k 85 2,173 14,656 10,521 1,295 49,245
~ interest portion -fE#n 2,631 1,222 430 45 4,328
25,404 15,878 10,951 1,340 53,573
As at 31 December 2022 R=B==f
TZA=t-H
Borrowings: E
— principal portion -K&85 61,450 23,067 25,057 1179 110,753
- interest portion -MEHH 3,722 1,997 1,188 35 6,942
65,172 25,064 26,245 1214 117,695
(b) Capital risk management (b) E£EERAR
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AREBHBEELEESEREAE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern B 327 435 4 4R A% L ME 4 43 0 ) B
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 1 T A R% B A Rk O =R - 7 RS
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital FEHEMESEEANTZ I
structure to reduce the cost of capital. EESENBAEEIURES S
R o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BEE AR EALRE  KEFH
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, At eFHBRY N FRENKRE S
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets R EREES  BITHR
to reduce debt. o & B EURIE BT -
RERERERER D | ZTE=FFK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE@
(b) Capital risk management (Continued) (b) E£EEE b #@)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AEENRAEER B RERE
This ratio is calculated as net debt (borrowings less cash BN o W RIRER (BEHR
and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. Management HERBSZEER) B AEREZ
considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30% as E-EEERAECENEESR
reasonable. B EETEN30% °
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E_=F —E- %
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Borrowings ==} 49,245 110,753
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RE MRS EBEIER (375,093) (305,356)
Net Cash FHRE (325,848) (194,603)
Total equity BRER 1,193,216 1,131,481
Gearing ratio BEEBMFELE N/A R & A N/A 3 F
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the REBERBBHBELLELERE R
requirement for working capital management are transferred FENReRA DERARS
to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with HEEH B 25 EERER KE
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position. R UEEBEELKBREE M
As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintains cash and cash MR —_EBE-_=F+=-_A=+—
equivalents of approximately HK$375,093,000 (31 December H AEBZREMREEEE
2022: approximately HK$305,356,000) that are expected to H #9375,093,0008 (===
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial +=H=+—H8 : 305,356,000
liabilities. BL)  BHEAmEESRAE
LB o
(c) Fair value estimation (o) AFEME

The Group has classified its financial instruments by level of
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposit, trade and bills receivables, other financial
assets at amortised cost, amount due from an associated
company, amounts due from joint ventures, current portion
of borrowings, trade payables, dividends payable, accruals
and other payables, and loans from non-controlling interests,
approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The
non-current portion of other borrowings approximates their
fair values as the impact of discount is not significant. Lease
liabilities are initially measured on a present value basis by
discounting the lease payments to net present value using the
entities’ incremental borrowing rate.

See Note 8 for disclosures of investment properties that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2023.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Assessment of the expected credit losses of trade
and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the credit losses incurred in the past, current
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading
of hospitality supplies products (“Hospitality Supplies Business”),
trading of operating supplies and equipment (“OS&E Business”),
and manufacturing and trading of health care and hygienic
products (“Health Care and Hygienic Products Business”). From
a geographical perspective, the Board assesses the performance
based on the Group’s revenue by geographical location in which
the customer is located. There are three reporting segments: (i)
Hospitality Supplies Business; (ii) OS&E Business; and (i) Health
Care and Hygienic Products Business.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit/(loss) before income tax,
share of profit of an associated company, share of profit/(loss) of
joint ventures and net fair value change on investment properties.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers.
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the
principal markets in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2¥ER@W
Geographical (Continued) i & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue of the Group BHE-_Z_="F+-_A=+—HIHF
was recognised at a point in time and no sales derived from a single B REE WA T R E R
customer which exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group (for REREE—XFHNEEGRLAEER
the year ended 31 December 2022: same). WABI0% A E(BE_T - —F+=
A=+—HLFE : #HRA) -
For the year ended 31 December 2023, additions to non-current BHE_Z_=F+-_A=+—HIF
assets comprise additions to right-of-use assets, property, plant and B ERBEERBERRABEERAESR
equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets (for the E Y% BELRE BEFEERE
year ended 31 December 2022: same). tIERBEE (B2 _—_F+=_A4
=+—HIEFE: HR) -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 X BERRE
Leaschold Motor Fumiture Computer Plantand ~ Construction
Land Buidings ~ improvements vehicles and fidtures equipment machinery In progress Total
1 By RENZEE A& GfiREE EMRE  HRREE FRIR 5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
Tin Tn Tin Tin Thn Tin Thn Tin Thn

At1 January 2022 W=%=2%-B-R
Cost it 17,663 N3 170,563 2841 19,995 19,487 312,68 3564 944547
Accumulated deprecition ZiffgE

and impaiment REE - (141.793) (101,791) (25,134) (17,584 (19379) (193,740) - (499421)
Net book amount et 17,663 230430 68,772 3290 24 108 118,888 3564 45,126
Year ended 31 December BERoCf

m TIAZt-BLER
Qpening net book amount ENEETE 17,663 230430 68,772 3290 241 108 118,888 3564 445,126
Additions e - 1,941 2950 48 @31 404 17,078 5388 28610
Transfer &Y - 21 5,746 - - - - (7878) -
Disposals (ote 33(0) HE W) - - - (109 (5 - (195) - (309)
Depreciation (Note 23) TEman) - (18352) (10,633) (131) (782) (498) 311 - (55,288)
xchange differences EiEE % (&163 (2689 13 (144) 9 (5,119 37 (12179
Closing net ook amount EXEETE 17,688 211,988 64,146 24 191 B 106,940 97 405,94
At31 December 2022 kbt

+ZB=1-H

Cost S 17,688 363486 169,851 21514 19,110 18,538 194,776 9 911,760
Accumulated depreciaion 2iffiE

and impairment R - (151,4%8) (105,705) (5,083 (17,199) (18519) (187,836) - (505,796)
Net hook amount RERE 17,688 211,988 64,146 24 191 B 106,940 97 405,94
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

6 YME -BERRE®

Leasehold Motor Furniture ~ Computer Plantand  Construction
Land Buildings  improvements vehicles and fixtures  equipment  machinery in progress Total
1 B HENERE RE  BHR%E BBk HERAR ERIR it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEn TER TiEn T Tn T T T
Yearended 31 December ~ BE-ECZE
plIVE] TIRET-ALER
Opening net book amount ~~ £HIEESE 17,688 211,988 64,146 2471 1911 3 106,940 797 405,964
Additions TE 5,442 3,903 6,357 421 946 694 30,629 4491 56,734
Transfer to investment g\ L&z
properties (Note 8) His) (704) (10,653) - - - - - - (11,357)
Transfer /2 - - 3,040 - - - 9 (4,219) -
Disposals (Note 33(b)) HE (Hiaa) - - (344) 0] (31) - (997) - (1,374)
Depreciation (Note 25) R - (16,138) (10,559) (1,550) (597) (474) (23.223) - (52,541)
Exchange differences EfZE (18) (1382) (874) (20) @) 5 (1,557) (1) (3,889)
Closing net book amount ~ FRREFE 2,408 187,718 62,666 5171 2,187 28 112,01 1,068 393,537
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZfF
+ZR=t-A
Cost i 2,408 346,833 174,986 29,176 19,284 18,672 310315 1,068 922,102
Accumulated depreciation EiffE
and impairment RifE - (159115 (112,320 (24,005) (17,097) (18420)  (198,244) - (529,205
Net book amount RERE 22,408 187,718 62,666 5171 2,187 8 12,071 1,068 393,537

Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

AEBHYE  BELRBHTEDR
FAEzEBRSERNEG  FE0T

2023 2022

—E=-= =E==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Cost of sales SHE KA 40,176 42,071
Distribution costs oA 2,188 2,663
Administrative expenses TR 2 10,177 10,554
52,541 55,288

As at 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$ 15,590,000
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$18,960,000) were pledged
as securities for banking facilities of the Group (Note 21).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

7 RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
related to leases:

BEMBHERRME (F)

ERAEEEREESR
(@ RGEFEEEREREAWN

=

BAEEERBERBRTYHEE
BN eEE

2023 2022
—E_=H —=E——

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Right-of-use assets ERHEEE
Leased office premises HERAEME 81,286 84,201
Leased factory buildings HEmFEETF 15,473 16,926
Leased warehouse HERsE - 28
96,759 101,155

Lease liabilities HEAE

Current TR 5,680 5,166
Non-current IR ED 2,636 3,834
8,316 9,000

During the year ended 31 December 2023, additions
to the right-of-use assets amounted to approximately
HK$7,689,000 (year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$9,463,000), were recognised by the Group in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, certain right-of-use assets with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$26,690,000
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$27,860,000) (Note
21).

RNEE=—ZTE-—=F+=HA=+—
HIEFE EERRAEER
AU BRERNRNEFTRAREEE
#37,689,000 T (BLZE =T ==
F+-_A=Z=+—HLEEFEE:H
9,463,000/ 7T) °

RZE-_=F+=-_RA=+—8"
44 8K TH {8 #926,690,00058 7T (=
T F#+=ZA=+—H: 4
27,860,000/ L) & T AESE
ECBFEARSBERITRE 2
AR (BiaE21) o

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

7 RIGHT-OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7

(Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

FAREEREES S @

(b) RGEE2EHBREREIN

T8

mAErENRERBER NIEES
HENEE

2023 2022
—g=-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE

Leased office premises HER T 3,508 3,759
Leased factory buildings HEmEETF 5,149 5,221
Leased warehouse HEEE 27 105
8,684 9,085

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABNERX
(Note 28) (B17#28) 409 590
Other lease expenses (Note 25) HMMEERS (WiZ25) 6,066 5,907

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total cash
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$12,066,000 (year ended 31 December 2022: approximately

HK$12,263,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for

The Group leases various land, offices premises, factory
buildings and warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 to 50 years, which do not contain any

extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated

on an individual basis and contain

a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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8

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

8 REW=

2023 2022
—EBEC-=H - F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
At 1 January »—HA—8H 16,638 15,911
Transfer from property, plant and equipment W= - WERRBR
and right-of-use asset to investment FCRAREEEEARE
properties (Note) mE (Kist) 28,698 -
Net fair value change on investment properties RENMEZ AT ELEFH - 1,974
Exchange differences fE X =8 (148) (1,247)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 45,188 16,638
Note: Kt -
During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain property, plant and BE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=1+—HILFEE &
equipment of approximately HK$11,357,000 and a right-of use asset of 11,357,0008 T 2 & T W% - BB K& HE KL
approximately HK$1,757,000 have been reclassified to investment properties as 1,757,000 T2 AR EERAREE D EH
a result of change in usage. The fair values of the property, plant and equipment PRERENE -WE BEREZHEREARE
and right-of use asset at the date of transfer amounted to approximately BENEEH A F(E 428,698,000/ T © &
HK$28,698,000 resulting in recognition of revaluation surplus of approximately HrEREM 2 mE KSR E G EE£411,730,000
HK$11,730,000 and related tax effect of approximately HK$3,997,000 in other 78 7T M B R R 7% 2 £ 493,997,000 7 0 W R 5t
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. REGRHEE -
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated NTHIEERFEA 2 EKERER
statement of comprehensive income:
2023 2022
—E_-= - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Rental income (Note 26) HeWA (Kit26) 1,427 134
Direct operating expenses arising from REELEHESBAZ
investment properties that generates wREME L ERE
rental income (Note 25) B (M7t25) 132 36
(@) Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties (@) AEBREVECHBILEGER

were performed by an independent qualified valuer and the
management to determine the fair value of the investment

EEMMEEBETEIMEE
NEBEEREMENR_ZT_=FK

— % — — —_ — — IpN
properties as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The following —F__FF=A=1T—RAZA

table analyses the investment properties carried at fair value.

FE TRODHBRQIFEINEKZ
BEMEEDH
REEEZERERAR | —E=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
?-"vT\l:l

8

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

MBmEAME (F)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

8 KBEWHEw

(a)

Fair
31

(%)
DNFEER

value measurements at
December 2023 using

R=B-_=%+-A=+—H
AFERE (RUTEERES)

Quoted price in Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
&t B3 HEEE®E HEEH EENAA
SERMENRE THEERBASE HEWARE
(B—#) (B=#) (F=4)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THERT THERT

Recurring fair value measurements: & &M AFEE -

Investment properties KEYE - 17,600 27,588

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2022 using
RZZB-_—_F+_-_A=+—H
NEERE RATRIEAER)

Quoted price in Significant Significant
active markets for other unobservable
identical assets observable inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
B HREEE HipEEH EEZNAA
ABRMISHNKRE ABERBARE BERARE
(F—/) (F=#%) (F=%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEIT THETT
Recurring fair value measurements: & &M ATE S :
Investment property REYE - 16,638 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year (year
ended 31 December 2022: same).

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the direct comparison method.
For direct comparison method, sales prices of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square feet. The
higher the price per square feet, the higher the fair value.

| Annual Report 2023

AREBZRRITNERER 2 F
BB REtEEZ AERAT
BEERzEAREL - RFR -
F— R zEBEERE
(BE—Z2-_—F+=-RA=+—H
IEFE  8R) -

ERTRANEZE " RAOTFE
—RIAEE L EOABIE - REE
HEOAT S A & B
M E RS
FEMERT A BE - WIEED
EREENHABBBSFHR
M@ AFEBETHRNE
i 7400



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

As at 31 December 2023, the investment properties were
a factory building located at Level 1 and 2, No. 36 Sui De
Road Lane 2, Putuo District, Shanghai City, the PRC and
factory buildings located at Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th),
National Road No. 41 (Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong District, Kampong Speu
Province, Cambodia. The fair values as at 31 December 2023
were assessed by an independent and professionally qualified
valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, and the management.

The valuations were determined using the income
capitalisation method. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is market rent.

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuations of the
factory buildings located in Shanghai and Cambodia as at 31
December 2023 are:

Valuation technique

fhET %

Unobservable inputs

TUBRERABE

BEMBHERRME (F)

8 KBEWHEw

(a)

(%)

CERE R T PEt
ZAVEFE(E=ZR)
R-ZE_=F+_"_A=+—H &
EVMERURNTELBEDERE
B EE2FF365E — B M — B 2 M
12F KA Block K (11th) & Block Q
(12th), 33 ZENational Road No. 41
(Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu Province
BEET R_T_=F+_H
E+—EIZ’ ﬂ?faﬁmﬁiﬁ%/\
BERMGEMFREEETERRE
BRAREREE T -

EEDIERBBABEROEEE -
HEETEARERZBABIER
miEHEE o

R-F-=#+-A=+—BF
RS RRBRE? BEET
PR LB BERARRS

£|
%

As at 31 December 2023
R=-B-=F+=-H=+—H

Income capitalisation method Market rent

L UN-¥ N\ mizEE

For factory building located in Shanghai

RMB61 per square metre/month
MR EBZBRERZTF
BABFHFKRKARYE6IT

For factory buildings located in Cambodia

USD1.6 per square metre/month
URRERZBEET
BABFHKI6ET

As at 31 December 2023, if the market rent of comparables
decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss would be
approximately HK$1,379,000 lower. The lower the market
rent of comparables, the lower the fair value.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022

R-_TE_=F+-_/F=+—8"
WAL YEZTHHEE N E
5% BB RATEER DD
1,379,000/ 7T  A] & LL & W) 2 2
miEHAE K - BAFEBIE -

THREHBE-_F-_=F1+-7
S+-—BAR-_F-_—Ff+_#

for recurring fair value measurements: =+—BIEFELEMERTFER
EZE=RIBEEE :
2023 2022
—s=-= —T_=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Opening balance as at 1 January R—A— B ZBy&E4 - -
Transfer from property, plant and M - BB R A
equipment and right-of-use asset to ~ BE#E AR E W%
investment properties 28,698 -
Net fair value change on investment & ¥ 7 N FEEF F5E
properties (1,437) -
Exchange differences b H =58 327 -
Closing balance as at 31 December R+ _—A=+—H 2 #K% 27,588 -
BIEE R R AR A | ZEZ=FF=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)  Details of the investment properties:

The investment property of the Group are leased to the
tenant under operating lease with fixed monthly rental
receivable and the Group closely monitors the risk associated
with its right retains in the underlying asset.

Address of investment properties

REW M

Existing use

BATAZ

8

BREWE @

(b)

BREWMERZFIE

AEBEZRENERE ABERE
WHEemEeHEREPEL
AEEZERBREEMRE
BN ARERR

Tenure

I

Room 101, Chuntian Garden,

No. 6, Lane 999,

Loushanguan Road,

Changning District,

Shanghai City,

the PRC
hEEETREREILEIKIOE

65 FEREE101E

Level 1 and 2,
No. 36 Sui De Road Lane 2
Putuo District
Shanghai City
the PRC

AR B T R [ AR E R
27536 —EM—Z

Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th),
National Road No. 41
(Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu Province,
Cambodia

Block K (11th) & Block Q (12th),

31 December 2023: Rental
(31 December 2022: same)

ZEC=H+_A=+—H: 8

31 December 2023: Rental
(31 December 2022: nil)

—E_=F+_-_A=+—H ME
(=== +=A=+—H:®\)

31 December 2023: Rental
(31 December 2022: nil)

—F-=f+-A=+-0 AE

The property is held under
long term lease

MEDREEMEERA

The property is held under
long term lease

MEDRERBEERA

The property is held under
long term lease

MEDREBEERBABEERE

SRIHZE National Road No. 41 —E-—F+-A=+—H:&\)

(Ang Duong Road), Veal Vong Village,
Sen Dei Commune, Somroung Tong
District, Kampong Speu Province

(0 At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
lease of the investment properties not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements, which are receivable by the
Group as follows:

MN-_E_=—FR T __F+=
A=+—8 ' AEERETAZE
HISEMEZEHRE 2 EUYR K
=EREWALZE CRREGE IS
WRER)AT ¢

2023 2022
—=E-= T

HK$'000 HK$°000

FHET TET

Within one year —FR 2,271 -
Later than one year but no later BR—F

than 5 years BANERTF 3,817 -

6,088 -

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BEMBHERRME (F)

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 RHEREFREE
(a) Goodwiill (a) B8
2023 2022
—E-=F —FE-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
At 1 January n—H—H 5,398 5,390
Exchange differences b 5, =58 (1) 8
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 5,397 5,398
Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs, HESREMBAEARZESES
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which Bz BIARSE AR E IR i
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management SERPE 7 HZFEKFE (TRAE
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment. BOER) o
As at 31 December 2023, goodwill of approximately R-ZEBE-_=%+=-_A=+—8"
HK$5,397,000 (31 December 2022: approximately & 495,397,000 (ZE ==
HK$5,398,000) is attributable to the cash-generating unit + = HA=+—H : 45,398,000/
("CGU") for the Group's business in Cambodia. TO)JIRERER 2 RIBEZEK 2
ReEFEU ([REELEM]) -
Impairment test of goodwill arising from the business I AHFE R FEE AT E L A
combinations in Cambodia JR1E R ER
Independent valuation of the recoverable amounts of the BeELASEN A WO E£5EE A
CGUs was performed by an independent professionally BYBEESERGEMETE L
qualified valuer. (ERERS
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on WEEESMN 2 KRB £ )%
a value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash FEREBETEAET - th”r’é'ﬁ
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by FERABEARSREAERE
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash MEERFHNTHREEM ;d'
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not o AEHENESRERTRE
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries REEABMLLEFMERER K
in which the CGU operates. TR ENRBKIEREHEE -
The key assumptions are as follows: FEREZDAT
Operation in Cambodia
RRFEREZEE
2023 2022
—EBE-=F g
Pre-tax discount rate R ATIT IR R 22.1% 25.5%
Compound annual growth rate WAEEEF
of revenue R & 12.5% 12.9%
Terminal growth rate ST p 2.0% 2.0%
The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use Lise e {gfﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁ & A g @
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2023. A decrease SHBER_ZE-_=F+_A7
in compound annual growth rate of revenue by 0.4% (2022: =tT—HZERE - BBAES
7.4%) would remove the remaining headroom for the CGU Ei%ﬁ)ﬁ%yo.él% (ZZE——%:
of the Group operation in Cambodia. 74%) S HBRAEBRNRBRESE
Zfﬁiéi 57 AR H ER 1D o
BIEE R R AR A | ZE_=FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 9 BENEFEEE @
(b) Intangible assets (b) BEEE
Investment
in club Software ~ Operating
Trademarks debenture licences licence Total
BE SFEFRE BHBYE fmekR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2022 R=B-Z§-A-R
Cost KA 1,770 968 1171 1,728 15,637
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHEELEE (1,668) (968) (10,904) (1,728) (15,268)
Net hook amount REFE 102 - 267 - 369
Year ended 31 December 2022 Bz-3-CF
ToAZt-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNRETE 102 - 267 - 369
Additions RE - - 805 - 805
Amortisation (Note 25) B (W#25) (34) - (653) - (687)
Bxchange differences EXEE @ - - - )
Closing net book amount EXEEFE 64 - 419 - 483
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=1-H
Cost A 1,768 9%8 11,976 - 14,712
Accumulated amortisation and impairment EHEELEE (1,704) (968) (11,557) - (14,229)
Net book amount REFE 64 - 419 - 483
Year ended 31 December 2023 BZ-B-=F
TZA=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 64 - 419 - 483
Additions AE - - 470 - 470
Amortisation (Note 25) B35 mH25) (25) - (605) - (630)
Exchange differences EHER - - - - -
Closing net book amount EXREEE 39 - 284 - 33
At 31 December 2023 R=BZZF+=A=1-H
Cost KA 1,71 968 12,446 - 15,185
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHBERAE (1,732 (968) (12,162) - (14,862)
Net book amount REFE 39 - 284 - 323

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

(b) Intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets have been
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

EHEREFEE @

(b) EFEE @

AEEENEENBHEERES
2EKESE RO - FHEET

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Distribution costs o SHR A 461 458
Administrative expenses TBRH 169 229
630 687

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the

10 EZLEFEHR

BRRTE AR MITEMNGIHRIEE
EEMMB AR EERE  METAEN
W Fl— R - Al EEMSHR

same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows: EEHEBEGHEEE - MESB|WOT ¢
2023 2022

—EC-=F — =z
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISREE 3,059 3,205
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSRARE (9,593) (5,602)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEMEMEEFE (6,534) (2,397)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:

BEFSHARE 2 EFHMT

2023 2022
—=E—-= -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January n—H—H (2,397) (1,837)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 30) RiE = AR (M17#30) (144) (488)

Recognised in other comprehensive income 7 H b 2 [ U 25 W HERR (3,997) -
Exchange differences b 5 =58 4 (72)
At 31 December W+—R=+—H (6,534) (2,397)
AIEERIERERAR | —E_=FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

10 EEFRBH @

NERRRF B DA RELERER
EREBHENER  FRELEHEREE

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: kBEZEHET :
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFEHERES
Additions
Accelerated  Revaluation of dueto Capitalisation of
tax investment business right-of-use
depreciation properties combination assets Total
e REK FREEE
MEHERE NEEfR EHMAE BAfL )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL ThL Thn AL
At 1 January 2022 RZE--£-R-8 (841) (2.464) (1,153) (1,150 (5,608)
Recognised in profit or loss RERNED 910 (494) 362 (909) (131)
Exchange differences EAEE (69) 97 (5) 114 137
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZE+ZA=t-H - (2.861) (79) (1,945) (5,602)
Recognised in other comprehensive REMZANG
income B2 - (3,997) - - (3.997)
Recognised in profit or loss RERNED (370) - 267 33 (10)
Exchange differences EREE ) 98 - - 76
At 31 Decemnber 2023 R=2-=F+-A=1-H (3%2) (6,760) (529) (1912) (9,593)
Deferred income tax assets EEFRBHEE
Decelerated Capitalisation
tax of lease
depreciation liabilities Tax losses Total
ARBENE HEaEEAL e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL THL TATL
At 1 January 2022 W-E--f-A-R 2,1 1,171 329 3,
Recognised in profit or loss NEBRENER (1,092) 1,064 (329) (357)
Exchange differences EiER (95) (114) - (209)
At 31 December 2022 R=B-Zf+-A=+-H 1,084 2,121 - 3,05
Recognised in profit or loss REZAER 44 (118) - (74)
Exchange differences EXER (13) (59) - (72)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=f+-A=+-H 1,115 1,944 - 3,059

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$16,181,000
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$12,679,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of PRC
subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings totaled approximately
HK$323,627,000 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$253,589,000), and the Group does not intend to
remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiary to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BEMBHERRME (F)

11 INVENTORIES 11 F&

2023 2022

—E=-= el —
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Raw materials R AT 118,588 92,223
Work in progress TE&; 34,920 12,542
Finished goods 2K T 217,941 200,080
371,449 304,845
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories W REFERE (42,363) (44,669)
Inventories, net FEFE 329,086 260,176

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,077,213,000 (year ended 31
December 2022: approximately HK$948,165,000).

Direct written off of and net provision made for obsolete inventories
for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$4,899,000 (year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$3,303,000) and approximately HK$7,293,000 (year ended 31
December 2022: reversal of provision made for obsolete inventories
amounted to approximately HK$7,405,000) respectively. These
were recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

AEBHFAHERANGFEER AL
1,077,213,0008 L (BZE—E - —F+—
A=+—HIL5Z : #9948,165,000/7T) °

BHE_ZT-_=F+=ZH=+—81Lt
FE HEMBEEERETENR
%% % o 5 #74,899,000/8 7T (B & —
T+ A=+—BIEEE:
#93,303,0007% 7T) K& £97,293,000/% 7T
(BT -_—F+-A=+—HIF
[ SLPR &7 & B 45 <« # 21 497,405,000
BIL) o WERRARY - Wit AGER
ARERAMEEXA] -

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 12 EREZRIRERE
2023 2022
—E=-= — -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables JEUNE 5 BR 3K 675,435 635,667
Bills receivables FEM = 17,533 17,362
692,968 653,029
Less: provision for impairment of trade and W EWE SRR
bills receivables ER R EREE (83,197) (94,194)
Trade and bills receivables, net EE SRR R EEFE 609,771 558,835

The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120
days.

AEBMRMETHEERN F15H=120
E| o

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 12 EREZRAREE @

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as W E SRR R RBIZERE R BNRR

126

follows: DSITIT :
2023 2022
—EC_-_=F — -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
1-30 days 1%230H 331,264 229,694
31-60 days 31£60H 128,056 121,733
61-90 days 61£90H 55,938 70,779
91-180 days 912 180H 91,732 118,273
Over 180 days 180H A 85,978 112,550
692,968 653,029
2023 2022
—E-= —E=E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Denominated in: AT EESIE
- RMB N 318,082 305,664
- US$ -%E7T 304,891 278,338
- HK$ - AT 36,563 34,518
- Other currencies - HaEE 33,432 34,509
692,968 653,029

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, are as follows:

EUEZEREFEENRFEDT

2023 2022
:‘g: = ="
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T
Trade and bills receivables EWE S ERAREE 609,771 558,835

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$83,197,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$94,194,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See
Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are
calculated. Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as “net reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses)
on financial assets” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously impaired
and provided for are credited in profit or loss. Receivables for
which an impairment provision was recognised are written off
against the provision when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash. As at 31 December 2023, the individually
impaired trade and bills receivables mainly represent receivables of
approximately HK$66,002,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$64,092,000) from PRC customers which have remained long
overdue and management considered the recoverability is remote.

12

BEMBHERRME (F)

EWEZERREE @

RZE-_=ZF+_A=+—8' ' EKZ
5 BR A & 2= 4% 4983,197,0008 7T (= Z
——F+ZHA=+—H : 494,194,000
BT) BN BRRERELEE - B
R EEENE RS 28K E30) ) e
BB ZEREER 2 REREESFSE
RizE2HAREREVAISREER
EEEER CREEIE) FHE] - kBE
WE SR B RETIRBENRES
BABE - WEHEEKBEREIIRS
WEﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁmE%mE#ﬁﬁ¢
WiE - R_TE=—=F+=_A=+—8"
BRI R RENERESES &TF
FEREREKFREFBHE ARKT
ﬁ%omom%ﬁc:%::¢+—ﬂ
=+—H : 464,092,000/ T) B EE B
RA AU E] 1 E A o

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills JEUS B 5 BR 3k N S 15 B Rk (B B 1B Y & B
receivables are as follows: N
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 94,194 87,448
Net (reversal of provision)/provision for FREWE FRN
impairment of trade and bills receivables REBORE (BERD)
recognised during the year BEFE (1,515) 15,347
Write-off of provision for impairment of M EWE SRR R EEN
trade and bills receivables VEREREY (7.,489) (3,473)
Exchange differences MW R (1,993) (5,128)
At 31 December Rt—-—A=+—H 83,197 94,194

The creation and release of provision for impairment of trade
and bills receivables have been included in the net reversal of
impairment losses/impairment losses on financial assets in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

B E ZERRRBRERBNTRER
BEOHAREZHESERAZERME
ERERHRRE REBEFE- A
BERPAFA-—RNERETEKRE
B o

REERNRSEERRT EXXAEKE
MEKE SEANFERNOATE -
REEEZERERAR | —E=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

13 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is denominated in HK$. The credit period
granted is 90 days. The ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is

13 Bl —EBEQRRE

ZRER/ER—HEBERAFNE SR
Ko ZRA REEREE A FERS -
ZRBAETLEHE - R THEE IR0
B - ZRBREZEBMZREDTHT :

as follows:

2023 2022

—==-= — =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
1-30 days 1230H 3,822 2,682
Over 90 days 90H A E - 166
3,822 2,848

14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

14 BRBERTIRzHEMEE R

COST BE
2023 2022
—E-=H -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Current: TREp
Deposits e 1,699 1,723
Other receivables H b e W s IE 7,621 12,378
9,320 14,101
Non-current; JERED -
Long-term deposits RHE® 3 25
9,323 14,126
The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value. ZHEyEmEEEAFERE -
2023 2022
—E=-= —E=——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Denominated in: BATEESIE
-~ RMB — AR 7,409 8,201
- US$ —%7T 744 5,314
— HK$ —BTT 817 205
— Other currencies —HpEE 353 406
9,323 14,126

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

15 OTHER ASSETS 15 Hih&EE
2023 2022
—EC=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current; mE
Prepayments TR RIE 20,620 18,429
Others Hib 45,806 31,976
66,426 50,405
Non-current: ERH :
Prepayments TETRIE 8,475 6,684
74,901 57,089
16 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT 16 BEFRITER
2023 2022
—E-=F —_ ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Pledged bank deposit PIRRRITIER 11,958 11,717

As at 31 December 2023, a bank deposit of US$1,533,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,958,000) (as at 31 December
2022: US$1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,717,000))
was pledged as collateral for the grant of letter of banking facility in

Hong Kong.

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

A

o | |
Bk ||
FM?

+=HA=+—8 - 1,533,000
72 4911,958,000/8 ) (R= =&
B=+—8: 1,500,000 7T
,717,000%8 7)) 2 —TEER7T
BEBIRITR G R 2 KT

M
ﬁ
|

1]

Qo
-H —
<~

E%fﬁ

o ;_5&

SOt Se | | A
i3
Zr

17 RERBLEEER

2023 2022
—E—= —E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Cash at banks and on hand RITEBRNES 278,495 264,143
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities 48 Bi$R 7T 3% (R 2B A A%
of less than three months) =@A) 96,598 41,213
375,093 305,356
Denominated in: LA TE®BYE :
- Us$ —%7T 175,400 126,711
- HK$ — BT 49,522 77,537
- RMB — AR 103,721 67,404
— Euro — BT 28,836 15,502
— Other currencies —HEihEH 17,614 18,202
375,093 305,356
The Group’s cash and bank balances with banks in the PRC Eé\:;ﬁ: —F+-_fA=+—H AKEEH
and India as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately FRB R &EUFE’ﬁEﬁZEE%&EEﬁ
HK$102,936,000 (31 December 2022: approximately 45 Bl 49102,936,0008 T (ZF = —
HK$67,253,000) and approximately HK$117,000 (31 December F+-_HA=+—H : 467,253,000 71:)
2022: approximately HK$2,363,000) respectively, where the K #91 17 OOO/%TE (=2 ==
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. =+—H : #2,363,000E7T) ﬁiﬂm
i‘?l\E E %U%EEE ®
BIEE R R AR A | —E-=FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

130

18 RESERVES 18 f#f&
Other reserves HihfE B
Share-based
Merger Statutory  Compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve  reserve fund Reserve Reserves Reserves eamings Total
RS AT
aiEE  EEREE  NMERRE Hinbhte IE f i RERA faz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR Thn Thn Thn TR Tn
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZB-Z%
-A-BHER 61,510 EEN) 123 5,033 48,448 376,993 526,049
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year TEERT - - - - - 75,511 75,511
Other comprehensive loss A2EER
Currency translation differences EHREEE - - - - (25,597) - (25,597)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 20 (§8) /i
income g - - - - (25,597) 7551 49,914
Final dividend relating to 2021 “E--ER7RARE - - - - - (7,238) (7,238)
Lapse of share options ERELT - - (13) - - 13 -
Balance at 31 December 2022 ~ W=ZZZ%E+ZA
=T-Bi&R 61,510 EEN) - 5033 2851 445,389 568,725
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZB-=Z%
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, CACRRER S0 mm - S B WS SRS
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year KRR - - - - - 104,181 104,181
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hh2m(58)/
income s
Currency translation differences EHnEESE - - - - (10,102) - (10,102)
Revaluation gain upon transfer from 4% - B R (B
property, plantand equipment ~ EARENEE
| oimesmentpopertes e R N L SR .
Total comprehensive income/ ~ 2EWE /(1)
(loss) g - - - 11,730 (10,102) 104,181 105,809
Final dividend relating to 2022 "I EERERE
(Note 32) W) - - - - - (21,115) (21,715)
Interim dividend relatingt0 2023~ —E-=FE 7P HRE
(Note 32) W) - - - - - (14477) (14477)
Balance at 31 December 203 ~ W=ZEZZ%E+ZA
=t-Bi&R 61,510 3,8 - 16,963 12,749 513,378 638,342

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RESERVES (Continued)

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 19).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(a) Share options

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, no share options were
outstanding as the last batch of 562,000 share options were
lapsed on 4 September 2022. During the year ended 31
December 2022, no share option was exercised and forfeited.

As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based
payment expense was recognised during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

18

19

RAEEERERERAR |

BEMBHERRME (F)

ERERC )

Hib@E @

142 2 /i

AU
AEENS BN B A RNIZE
RARBRATERNBARN TS+
FOHTHERBYHERNSRAS
GEEFTE AR R B Z5E -

EE L
RIBEHBEPBERRARG - AR %
BB ARAFENI0%DEEZEFHS
BEEZFEBEEZ A REMEAN50%
Bl - AERBCEBE@AE BIERA
R 3H 25T BB g A R A &
N EZFEESARFR AR ZEMER
EP25%HI KT o

KRG ST 9B & 1 1

PABAD STA OB & Rt T R IR R X T
BEERARITENBRERKLBENA
FE(FEE19) -

AR AR XA BN =

(a) BEAE
RZBEZ=FR T -__F+=
A=+—H8 #EOBERERR
17fF - A& 1% —#t 2562,0001n
BEREDCR - -_—_FNAMW
BAR -BHEZZT-_—_F+=A8
=+—HIFE HEBRER
TR REORYL -

HRATEERELDETHEE -
WMEBEE-_E_=fx-_FT__
+ZA=+—BHLFETERER
ARG A TR -

R FFR

131



132

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
l'/T\ = Eji‘%#&‘%%ﬁﬁui (n,\)

19 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

(b) Shares award

On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the
Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees,
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the
“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the
Company’s shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions.

In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the
Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons
before these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested.
The Group may from time to time instruct the Trustee to
purchase the Company’s shares from the market on the Stock
Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the
Selected Persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no shares
(year ended 31 December 2022: 5,000,000 shares, at
a consideration of approximately HK$2,145,000) were
purchased on the Stock Exchange by the Trustee on behalf of
the Group.

No shares were granted to Eligible Persons under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

19

LR 2 A4 VBN & ()

(b) M1 2R

%:%*ﬁiﬂﬂ:+ia'ﬁ
NAEIERMETE - A()B EAEE
MEE  ZEF  FHRAZER (S
ﬁ%AiD%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ K (i)
REHEE R ARSI RS B IZ
AX&AEM%KEIFPM“
RERARK - ZRIRETEIFTS A
B -EExgn 2 EMNEKETH
AEMATL2EFE ([EEAL]
FKath EEEA TR EARRD AR
f ([RERG])  EEETHB
GH(nE) - tkFEZENRH R
%E@% FBIKHERITTRE R

BRBITEIEIM S - AKEE 8
YE=T7 HERZTEAUTZFEAD
RAEFERE RUtERBRN
%&ﬁ&/%mﬁm REARE
BMEREEALRAS THRMD &
Eli?%hﬁx?AEW“%
MEBEARE R - WIARE
ARl B RS E M
Bt

HE-_Z-_=F+-A=1+—H
IEFE  FREABERRAEER
BIXBERGD (BE-_S——F
+=—A=+—HI1E4FE : 5,000,000
ARHIZ1D - B #2,145,0005 7T) °

REBEE_FT_=k=-_F -
+—A=1+t—"HBItFE BERK
DRBFTEIMAEERATEL ©

20 SHARE CAPITAL 20 R
Number of
shares HK$'000
W in & B FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FROOIBINEER
Authorised: SEE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R-Z--%5-A—A8"
31 December 2023 —E-E+ZA=+T-BAK
“E-=f+ZH=+-—-H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRAE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and R-—Z-—_%5-A—-A8"
31 December 2023 “E-ZHE+ZA=T-BK
—EZ=ZHf+=ZA=+-—H 734,262,697 7,343

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BEMBHERRME (F)

21 BORROWINGS 21 BE
2023 2022
—EB-=f = i e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Non-current: FEmE
Secured other borrowings without WEZEREZGRZ
repayable on demand clause EEAHMEE 2,164 2,206
Current; ED
Secured bank borrowings with BEEREREEERZ
repayable on demand clause BEERRITEE 47,081 108,323
Secured bank borrowings without WL ZREBER 2
repayable on demand clause BEERIBRITEE - 10
Secured other borrowings without WEIRESRKERERZ
repayable on demand clause BHEFEMES - 214
e, 47,081 108547
49,245 110,753
The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: EBEERIATE®SE
2023 2022
—B-=f T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
HK$ BT 7,287 10,782
uss$ ET 39,794 97,541
Japanese Yen (“JPY") BHE(RED 2,164 2,430
49,245 110,753

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values

as the impact of discounting is not significant.

B 1 B R 42

HRFTRZZEBITEN  EEZERE

BHEHEN

T

NERE

ZRABERA

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

21 BORROWINGS (continued) 21 BEE @)
As at 31 December 2023, the repayment terms of the borrowings R= =F+=-HBA=+—8 Kx&EH
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand H’]{ﬁEEI4Hu+&};zxj:1f§fﬁ1 EE 00
clause are as follows: 2T - [EEERBDT ¢
2023 2022
—E_-= i

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within 1 year R1FER 22,774 61,450

Between 1 and 2 years 1224F 7 8 14,655 23,067

Between 2 and 5 years EY A 10,521 25,057

Over 5 years 5L E 1,295 1,179

49,245 110,753

The weighted average effective interest rate of the Group's
borrowings at 31 December 2023 is 7.3% per annum (31
December 2022: 3.27% per annum).

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Except for other borrowings of approximately HK$2,164,000 as
at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$2,430,000), which was secured by
personal guarantee of a non-controlling interest of the Group, bank
borrowings were secured by certain property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and a bank deposit of the Group.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follows:

AEFR _TE-_=ZF+_A=+—HH
EBEENEFHERFFNRAE73I% (=T
—FEF-A=1+—8 FFZE327%) °

HE_Z_ =K -_ZFT-_—_%+_-A
T+ HLEFE AEEEETHEEE
BB 2 ISR -

BR-_ZE_=F+_A=+—HHEHE
£ & 492,164,0008 T (M= ==
+-—A=+—"HB:RBIREMBEED
2,430,0007% 7T ) LAZN &2 [ SE 1 ir i 21 2
BRI - SRITEEHUAARE
EETYE BEEXE TAEEE
& —IERITF REER A

EEZEBMEEZREENT :

2023 2022
—E-=F —_=E=——

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) M - BB R (fite) 15,590 18,960

Right-of-use assets (Note 7) CREEE (Hit7) 26,690 27,860

Bank deposit (Note 16) RITER(Ht16) 11,958 11,717
Total carrying amounts of assets EEAEE

pledged as security L AR 8RR 54,238 58,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Re Mg ERME (R)

21 BORROWINGS (continued) 21 {%E (%)
At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking REEH AEB 2B ARIEEMETT
facilities of the Group: EELAT
2023 2022
—E_=H —=E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH&T FAT
Floating rate: SZEF) R
Expiring within one year R —FE R 397,976 280,473
22 TRADE PAYABLES 22 BHEZERR
The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows: FERE SRRIEEZE B BHAOREKR DT
wmR
2023 2022
—=E—-= —ET-—
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
1-30 days 1%£30H 263,419 166,130
31-60 days 31£60H 8,065 400
61-90 days 61290H 8,663 152
Over 90 days 90H M F 2,315 1,636
282,462 168,318
2023 2022
—=E-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FATT
Denominated in: BATEEESIME
- RMB —AR¥E 238,243 143,693
- HK$ —%ETT 8,436 4,892
- US$ —%7T 30,615 14,691
— Other currencies —H i 5 5,168 5,042
282,462 168,318
HIEREEKRERAR | —TE_=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
?le:l

23

24

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

MBmEAME (F)

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

23 ESFERAREMENFIR

2023 2022
—E=-= —=F——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Current; V2

Other payables (Note) H M E T FRIE (f72E) 161,887 122,963
Accruals EEtEA 205,045 154,310
366,932 277,273

Non-current; IERE -
,,,,, Otherpayables ~ Htegpesos 9023 9967
375,955 287,240

The carrying values of accruals and other payables approximate
their fair values.

Note:

Included in other payables was advance from customers amounted
to approximately HK$22,541,000 (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$15,519,000).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2023 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted
to approximately HK$9,872,000 (year ended 31 December 2022: approximately
HK$12,857,000). The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining
performance obligations of these contract liabilities within one year or less.

LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

24

et ER R EMBENFRAENERERE
NHERE

HiaE

R AE M B BB 2 B P T 5K 4922,541,0007
T(ZZE-_—%+=-H=+—H : 415,519,000
BIT) °

BE-_ZT-_=F+-A=1+—HLFE RNF
At AR E T R4t 2 B RERUAL9,872,000
BTEBE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HLFE:
#912,857,0008 L) - AEBEEHR —FHER
FRAARNERUABITHSEANABZH TR
WET -

REFEZERER ZEK
REEERMN 2 REARIEN - £7)

FBBRENREE WEABENERAE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, these balances are R-EBE_=ZFR_FT - —F+_A
denominated in the following currencies: =+—HB UTIEEINNEZ EEEER
LUl

2023 2022

—gE—-= —=F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FET
HK$ BT 15,992 15,992
JPY =g 1,219 1,494
17,211 17,486

| Annual Report 2023



25 EXPENSES BY NATURE

The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net (reversal of
impairment losses)/impairment losses on financial assets:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

25

BMERIZRAX
EPASHERE - D R

TR K

SREEREEBERD), RERBEF
BRI (W) Jd T

2023 2022
—==-= —T=-=
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiEx FH&T
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEXAE 1,077,213 948,165
Auditor’s remuneration =BT BN &
— Audit services — B AR 75 2,880 2,700
— Non-audit services — B RS 777 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « & R RGN ITE 52,541 55,288
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENTE 8,684 9,085
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEMN R 630 687
Other lease expenses* HEHEREZ* 6,066 5,907
Net provision/(reversal of provision) for REFENRE
obsolete inventories (B ERRE) F58 7,293 (7,405)
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMERERE 4,899 3,303
Net (reversal of impairment losses)/ TRVEE CRERERD),
impairment losses on financial assets VEREYEi=bE - (1,515) 15,347
Employee benefit expenses EEBAIFRX 494,167 424,453
Transportation expenses BB R 77,076 84,351
Exchange (gains)/losses bE X (i) B8 (2,382) 3,062
Advertising costs HEE KA 15,649 16,896
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEYE  BERERE
plant and equipment BB () 854 (28)
Direct operating expenses arising from REEAHESWA
investment properties that generates ZIEMES
rental income EREERY 132 36
Utilities expenses NARX 29,586 26,654

These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as
expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

under HKFRS 16.

* MERX EEREEER SR E
B ARX Y TEHEBREMBRSE
A6 Tt E AEERE -

26 OTHER INCOME 26 HflxA
2023 2022
—E-=F —F_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Rental income (Note 8) HBUWA (HiE8) 1,427 134
Income from sales of scrap materials SHEERHA 769 497
Government grants (Note (i) AT w8 Bh (AT a23)) 7,206 8,957
Others E Aty 1,556 3,170
10,958 12,758
Note: Kiat -

Government grants recognised were related to subsidies from the PRC
Government in relation to certain capital investments of the Group, and
other subsidies from the PRC Government and the Hong Kong Government
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: subsidies from the PRC Government
in relation to certain capital investments of the Group and subsidies from
the Hong Kong Government under the Anti-epidemic fund). There were no
unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to the receipts of

these grants.

() BRI RS B RERASE
ETEARBRR B ARKRERE
B RBEERN 2 EMMHhAH (BE—

T-__F+=ZR=

T—BILEEERE:FH

B AR EE T EARE R i
AEEBEBFRIENDRARESERLZ
AL o WER I, S 4 Bl 7 48 B 7S R K 16
R EAMBEAE -

SRR ERE R AR

| ZE=FFHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

27 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

27 EERABAX

2023 2022

—F-=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT
Salaries, wages and bonuses e TEREA 442,449 399,841
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RIKE A — FEHEETE] 1,452 3,000
Welfare and other expenses BF REMAS 50,266 21,612
494,167 424,453

Five highest paid individuals IEBRaSFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 include five directors
(year ended 31 December 2022: five directors) whose emoluments

are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no payments or benefits
in respect of termination of directors’ services, remuneration in
respect of accepting office as director, emoluments in respect of
director’s other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries and other benefits
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (year ended 31 December 2022: Nil). There are no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities (year ended 31

December 2022: Nil).

28 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

BHE T =F+_A=+—HIF
B AEEREERTFMATEERS
EFEBHEZT__F+=HA=1+—8
EFEE - RARES) EFHOMER
R A BT 5E37 ©

HE—_ZEZ-_=%+-A=+—HIt&E
B BEEEEERKRLEESREm
MEES MR RERESFZE  RES
EMEZHA M IR EEE - g E
ERHEEHEEAQARIKEWE A RS
BrHEMREMRES iR Etie
AR E AT & ISR LA R IA R R
BHBEZE-__F+=-HA=+—H1t
FEE)  MERERESRS MM
B ARHEAREXE = At mER
REEZ-ZE-_—_F#+=-_A=+—8H
IEFE 8 BMEINESE BEF2F
THEEMEEERE A TAZER
EERFEMR G (BEZT ==

+—A=+—HILEE: &) -

28 BAHSUR A R B #% R AR

2023 2022

—E-=F —E- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Interest expenses on borrowings BEEZANERAX (5,841) (4,128)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEARZHNERX (409) (590)
Finance costs B B AR 2R (6,250) (4,718)
Finance income B 5 W A 5,916 593
Finance costs, net D N (334) (4,125)
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29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
:%/TIZI

29 FEMEBELQT

MEmEAME (F)

Ownership interest held
Particulars by non-controlling
Place of Principal of issued OW"Eb’Shi}F]’ inGterest held ;;'i"gtﬁtﬁ
incorporation activities share capital/ by the Group ;
Name of and kind of and place of registered FRBfSRRRRE fishRRRE
company legal entity operation capital 223 2022 2023 222
BEARE/
EMALBER ifEs
AER EERERY IEXBREEREL #f -®-ZF CBCZE CRIZH ZBICE
Ming Fai Holdings Limited British Virgin lslands, limited Investment holding; Hong Kong Us§100 100% 100% - -
liability company
BEARERAT ABRAFR BREMAR  REAREE 100%7 100% 100% - -
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Hong Kong, limited fiability Trading of hospitality supplies products, HK$10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic
products; Hong Kong
REEABRAT Bt BRELLA HEBELEREED ZERRR 1000000027 100% 100% - -
REARFEERELRR B
Ming Fai Enterprise International Hong Kong, limited fiability Trading of hospitality supplies products, HK$1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company operating supplies and equipment
and health care and hygienic
products; Hong Kong
METZER Bt BREMLT HERE(EREED SERQR 1,000,000 ¢ 100% 100% - -
ERAT RERRFEERELRR B
Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability company ~ Manufacturing and trading of HK$50,000,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited (Taiwan, Hong Kong and hospitality supplies products, trading
Macau's sole proprietorship of of operating supplies and equipment
legal person) and manufacturing and trading of
health care and hygienic products;
the PRC
BEEZ (R BRAT hEBRECAR(REE  RERHEERMEREER EE  S0000000ET 100% 100% - -
ENEE) BERRRABNRBEREER
REERGERD  RE
H-Square Hospitality Total Solution ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Trading of operating supplies and HK$1,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company equipment; Hong Kong
HERAERERRAR Bt BREMLT HELERRRRE B 10007 100% 100% - -
Shenzhen H-Square Hospitality Total ~ The PRC, limited liabllity company  Trading of operating supplies and HK$50,000,000 100% 100% - -
Solution Company Limited (Taiwan, Hong Kong and equipment; the PRC
Macau's sole proprietorship of
legal person)
R ZRERREERAR hEBRECAR(REE  HELERRRRE 1E 50,000,000 ¢ 100% 100% - -
ENEE)
H-Square Hospitality Total Cambodia, limited fiability Trading of operating supplies and Cambodian Riels 100% 100% - -
Solution (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. company equipment, Cambodia 400,000,000
H-Square Hospitalty Total REF FREELA HECERDRAE  REE 400,000,000 100% 100% - -
Solution (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. THRER
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, imited liabilty Provision of professional solutions in HK$1,000 100% 100% - -
company product design, corporate branding,
gifts & premiums, and event
management services; Hong Kong
TEREY SR BRAT EE BREMLT REZZERS AER 1,000%7T 100% 100% - -
nERERE BmRk
RRRERE AR
B B PR AR B IR A A —E=FFR

139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

29 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

29 FEMBA T @

Ownership interest held

Particulars by non-controlling
Place of Principal of issued OW"eb’Shiﬁ ir(literest held ;Etiﬁr;?é
incorporation activities share capital/ y the Group :
Name of and kind of and place of registered FRBAERERR fisgaRRn
company legal entity operation capital 2023 2022 2023 2022
BEARE/
EMALBER ifExe
ARER EERERE TEXBRBLHEY #ff -8-cE -R-CF CRISE CRoCE
IKONE Design (Shenzhen) Limited The PRC, limited liability company  Provision of professional solutions in HK$2,000,000 100% 100% - -
(Taiwan, Hong Kong and product design, corporate branding,
Macau's sole proprietorship of gifts & premiums, and event
legal person) management services; the PRC
TERT R F hE BREAAR(GER  REZFERET LER 2,0000007C 100% 100% - -
(RN BB AT ENEE) nEEENR Bak
EBRARE: 18
Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care Lab Hong Kong, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of hospitality HK$100,000 100% 100% - -
Limited company supplies products and health care
and hygienic products; Hong Kong
BETERRAN B4 EREEAR RERHERERREER IR 1000007 100% 100% - -
BRAA ERREERR BR
Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) Cambodia, limited fiability Manufacturing and trading of hospitality 1S$16,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co,, ltd. company supplies products and trading of
operating supplies and equipment;
Cambodia
Ming Fai Enterprise (Cambodia) RER AREFLTA UERHEBELEREERREE 1600000057 100% 100% - -
Co, Ltd. SERRRAE K%
Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability company Product development and trading of JPY140,000,000 51% 51% 49% 49%
body care products; Japan
A ghizEs B EREEAT SELREQRENES AR 140,000,005 E 51% 51% 49% 49%
Quality Amenities Supply Pte. Limited  Singapore, limited liability company ~ Trading of hospitality supplies products, Singapore dollar 100% 100% - -
operating supplies and equipment $100,000
and health care and hygienic
products; Singapore
Quality Amenities Supply Pte. Limited ~ $7105% - ARA AT HEBELEREED BERQR 100,000 100% 100% - -
FBEEFERREL AR il
i
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited fiability Manufacturing and trading of hospitality US§4,000,000 100% 100% - -
company supplies products and trading of
operating supplies and equipment;
Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited REE AREELA HERHERELEREERREE 4,000,000% T 100% 100% - -
BERDREE REE
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies Private  India, limited fiability company Manufacturing and trading of hospitality Indian Rupee 51% 51% 49% 49%
Limited supplies products and trading of 338,300,530
operating supplies and equipment;
India
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies Private £ AR EA AT HERBERELEDEEQREE 38,300,530 51% 51% 49% 49%
Limited LERQREE IR DEE

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

| Annual Report 2023



30

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 30

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

BEMBHERRME (F)

RSB

RiFe2EERZNG(BE) WM
MEER !

2023 2022
—F-=fF —F-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current income tax: BVERFTIS R
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBRER 17,483 11,593
— PRC enterprise income tax — B EFTISH 29,350 8,354
— Other overseas profits tax — HE M EINFIET 2,709 437
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFEAE (1,243) (728)
48,299 19,656
Deferred income tax credit (Note 10) REFTSTE S (A7E10) 144 488
48,443 20,144

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%), 25% (2022: 25%), 17%
(2022: 17%) and 20% (2022: 20%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2023 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

MR TR AR B & P A R 8
FE A KGR RS -

EBFEHR  PECEMBEH  #FNE
ERBH RRIERLSEMGHRIIRR
HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HILHF
EharERTE S DB A16.5% (=ZF
— & :165%) 1 25% (T = —
25%) 17% (ZZT==—F :17% ) &
20% (ZZF =4 : 20%) & o

HgoNgE M 2 BRI R AR EE LR
ERDERRB 2RITED 2B REMIR
SEWE 2 RITERBETHE

RERRZERARAR | —T-=FF#K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VAN
é‘l:l

N

30

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

MBmEAME (F)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts

30 FTBFHBAXZ @

FAEEERERPERMEHR X H R
B AN KR AR PTG B AT GE M At E A

which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit B4Rz Z5HHERNAT ¢
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Profit before income tax REtFTS R A& 144,074 89,986
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %3 FA 7 & @ & A & #Y
to profits in the respective jurisdictions SHEAE R =R
STEABIIE 26,628 15,414
Income not subject to tax HARTHBA (3,026) (6,301)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR IR 5 2 7,089 2,138
Utilisation of prior year tax losses BRBTFE 2 MBEEIR (412) (1,926)
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE (1,243) (728)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax 34 R IERBELEREHEE
asset was recognised B IE B 18 19,407 11,547
Tax charged BB 48,443 20,144

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (year ended 31 December
2022: 17% per annum). The change is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective jurisdictions.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$379,436,000
(31 December 2022: approximately HK$309,759,000) as at 31
December 2023 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

BE_ZTZ-_=F+-_RA=+—RHIEE
WINEFEHEAREREEF18% (BE
B+ A=+—HItEE:F
F17%) ° TR E VA AR E BN B
NEEBAREERO AR R -

EIEFTSHEE T ERBEH =T
7 1B R PR E SR B s F) 23R 1M mh P 4 62
ZHBEBEER R _=ZF+=
BA=+—H ' xX&EE 2 KERFIAESE
#9379,436,0008 L (Z T = —F+=H
=+ —H : #9309,759,0005 Jt) * Al K
SHAR R IEERTAULA o SL EFHIEEE AR
T R E R -

2023 2022

—E=-= —ET——
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
In the first to fifth years inclusive FE—FEFNF (RIEEEMF) 231,848 181,666
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive FRFEF+F (BIEEEMT) 15,358 13,907
No expiry date &= m B 132,230 114,186
379,436 309,759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted

31

BEMBHERRME (F)

BREF

(a) EX

BREXRBMURNREHEE AR
ERMFEAFRBETEBERZ

shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$22,028,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 24 August 2023, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK2.0 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2023. Total dividend of approximately HK$14,685,000 was paid
out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2023 of HK5.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of approximately HK$36,713,000 was resolved by the Board to
propose on 25 March 2024, which is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 22 May
2024. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in the consolidated financial statements, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December
2023.

RAERRZERERA \

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. IEFHHETE -
2023 2022
—EB-=F -
Profit attributable to owners of the KABEE ANEL
Company (HK$"000) w A (FET) 104,181 75,511
Weighted average number of ordinary BT S BRI B
shares in issue (thousands) (FH) 723,839 725,699
Basic earnings per share BRELRRF
(expressed in HK cents) (BB ) 14.4 10.4
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the & ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁb K AR 2% BT /A 0] # 58
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to El’\J B L AR R g aﬂ%ﬂ?‘
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. TEEREINRE I EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023, diluted earnings per BE-_T_=F+— )EJ =+—H
share was the same as basic earnings per share as there were HFE BMEERTEEH ST
no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the year BR-BWEEZTE_=%+=H
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: same). S+ —HBLEFEZEREERA
HERERBNER (ZT 5
ME) e
32 DIVIDENDS 32 AR
On 24 May 2023, a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share for the MRZZBE_=FFAA-+WMA - KRR
year ended 31 December 2022 was approved by the Company's %E}tb/ﬁ KEHEE_T__+_H

—t+t—BLEFEZRARE SK3.0%E
fill = #922,028,000/% JT 2 i% & #& ﬁﬁEﬁE
IKE - BIERETEI T 2 IR &R 2
Zﬁgao

RZE_=FNA-_+EB EFg
EANEREE T -_=ZFA=1H
WEAREA 2 HRR B & R%2.08 1L - 49
14,685,000/ T 2 i% & ZE%EE £k

BIEFETEI T RHE 2RO ERE ZRE -

R-_E-_WNF=A_+HB EFg
BAERRERBREE_T_=F1+_A
=+—HIEFERRAR BRS04 -
f% B A8 %E #)36,713,000/8 7T © HEBEER
—ECMFRA T —HRITHAQA
h%ﬁiﬁAL%%E& FAEE -

Ih 2 5 BB 1 R R AR B B RS R R R R
EJT%HHXQ TERRABE_T_=F

TZA=+—BLEFENNERRERM -

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

33 MEBELHRERM:E

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to
cash generated from operations

(@) RETAFEBAIRNEEER
BREASHHER

2023 2022
—E-= N —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit before income tax REFETS LA & A 144,074 89,986
Adjustments for: EEH TSR
- Depreciation of property, plant and —E - -BEX
equipment (Note 6) wEIE (Kit6) 52,541 55,288
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEEITE
(Note 7(b)) (KtzE7(b)) 8,684 9,085
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A E
(Note 9(b)) (Hf&tom)) 630 687
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEYE BEX
plant and equipment (Note 33(b)) BB EE
(W) (B a£33(b) 854 (28)
— Receipts from government grants — W B R A 78 B 5,763 -
~ Finance income (Note 28) — BB A (T 5E28) (5.916) (593)
— Finance costs (Note 28) — BB (f15#28) 6,250 4,718
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for —REFENEE,
obsolete inventories (Note 11) (BeRm) (Bra11) 7,293 (7,405)
— Direct written off for obsolete —EEMERERE
inventories (Note 117) (Btet11) 4,899 3,303
— Net (reversal of impairment losses)/ — e mMEE CRERIE
impairment losses on financial Bm) REEE
assets (Note 12) FEE(MiE12) (1,515) 15,347
— Share of profit of an associated —EE—RHEBE ARz
company S A (253) (511)
— Share of (profit)/loss of joint ventures —E(EEEhE Y
CaF) B’ (92) 207
— Net fair value change on investment —REMEZAFE
properties (Note 8) S ERE (H7E8) - (1,974)
Changes in working capital: HBESH
— Inventories -8 (85,492) (4,138)
— Trade and bills receivables —ERE SHEXRRER (57,599) (57,338)
— Other assets —HiEE (20,621) 4,413
— Other financial assets at amortised cost — B AR
Hib e mEE - 1,141
— Trade payables —ERESEXR 119,813 1,829
- Accruals and other payables —JEETE A&
H At &5 5RIE 95,581 17,002
— Amount due from an associated — eI — e B 2 A F)
company HIE (974) (512)
— Amounts due from joint ventures — A B EIE (241) (67)
Cash generated from operations REXBSNRE 273,679 130,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

33 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33 FEREREBRWZE @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE BERREMRS
equipment MIE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REEBEERERD  LEWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B K 32 AR PG sRIE B4
2023 2022
—E== —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Net book amount: RMEFE :
— Property, plant and equipment — M - WE K&
(Note 6) (Hi7te) 1,374 309
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - MERBREZ
and equipment (Note 25) (EB#8) Wz (Bit25) (854) 28
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME  BERZE
plant and equipment Fr {53/ I8 520 337
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing (0 REMETH2EBZ2HER
activities
Liabilities from financing activities
REMEZBZERE
Loans from
non-
Lease controlling
Borrowings liabilities interests Total
FER
RE HEsE ERNEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
fsatllanay2022 - RZ R-Z-—%"A-8 e T 17369 164,595
Cash flows RBeme (34,604) (6,412) 286 (40,730)
Addition to lease liabilities HEEERE - 9,463 - 9,463
Finance cost (Note 28) BSRKA (H3228) 4,128 590 - 4,718
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMEZHE (119) (519) (169) (807)
Asat3iDecember2022  M-B-—F-AS-R M7 2000 746 137,239
Cash flows Heme (67,328) (6,000) (172) (73,500)
Addition to lease liabilities HEBEAE - 5,151 - 5,151
Finance cost (Note 28) SR (H3228) 5,841 409 - 6,250
Foreign exchange adjustments S 3% (21) (244) (103) (368)
As at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+ZA=+—H 49,245 8,316 17,211 74,772
PHIBREERERAR | ZE_=FF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHERRME (F)

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitments of the Group

34 BEARIE

R-F-_=F+-A=+—8 A&H

were as follows: HEARAFENT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted but not provided for in the BRI A ML R
consolidated financial statements frE M mER NG 14,752 19,183
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 B ARS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the

other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they Bt

4 Eﬁ%ﬁ °

are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim

Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the

following related parties:

Name of related party
B S £

Principal business activities

ITREKRED

(a)

i A — T REEHI 5 —T7 - R EM K
Z“‘%—‘fﬁ&ﬁtfﬂié TEN  ARE

B KREGIRB AL TER S

AREEZ ZEER T RREELLE 2
HoRELE - BT

M 55 4 K R B 22 £ -

EXBABLIRS

75 B 8 52 L T RO
25

F T EITEXR

Relationship with the Group
BAEE R

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company (”“MF Plastic”)

PIEEREENA
(TeREZR])

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. ("QASM")

Quality Amenities Supply (M)
Sdn. Bhd. ([QASM])

iBridge Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited
(“iBridge Technology”)

BIBERE ORI BR A A

(TR EERE)

Advance Medical Designs
(Hong Kong) Limited
(" AMDHK")

Advance Medical Designs

(Hong Kong) Limited
(T AMDHK )

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

HEPREM(B_TT=F
O A EAR IFRYE 2B B E )

Trading of hospitality supplies
products, operating supplies and
equipment and health care and
hygienic products

HEOEREREER  2ERR
&c&ﬁi@ﬁ;)ﬁ €38 K AT A

Provision of information technology
services

RHE AR IR

Trading of disposable infection
control products

5 B R IE B E M

Partnership owned by Mr. CHING
Chi Fai, Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

RIEEIEAEE  BRREER
k,b BELFMEANAEREE

Associated company of the Group

ZA SE Lk N

Joint venture of the Group

A3

JiE]

MEERE

Joint venture of the Group

RE

JiE]

U>

M &

Bihx

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

(a) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following significant

35 AR S @

() EXBEELERS @)
BREGA B IR R E b B 5 TR
BEIN REBEEBESETH

transactions with related parties: BERARSIT
2023 2022
—E-=F T

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

(i) Sales of goods () SHEER
—to QASM — FQASM 12,290 13,990
— to iBridge Technology —TREBEER 17 33
—to AMDHK — FAMDHK - 92

(iy Purchase of goods (i BEER
— from iBridge Technology — B RIEER X 372 234

(i) Rental charged (i) WERMHES

— by MF Plastic —RAEYE 1,257 1,322

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

Purchases of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from MF Plastic as one of
its production bases in the PRC. The transaction is carried out

at prices agreed between the parties.

HESEMmNEIO T ZHEM
HEMBIRETRRS

BEEmDRINOTZEAEMR
BEMBRETRRS

AEERHABEZBHEAE TR
ERERFEMER —FEER
o R B TIIRET KT 2B E

1% 7 RO BARAETT ©

BREE R R AR A A

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management compensation

35 BEE RS @)
(b) TEEBAEME

2023 2022
—E== —F-—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Fees, basic salaries, housing allowances, #% - E# - (TFE 28, -
other allowances and benefits-in-kind Hip2ih R IES BRI 10,411 9,385
Contributions to pension scheme RIRE B 122 126
10,533 9,511

(c) Year end balances arising from sales and
purchases of goods

HERBEEmNFRERR

2023 2022

—EBC-=fF =E3==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET

Amounts due from FEUUA T &5 5IA

— QASM (Note 13) —QASM (H#7#13) 3,822 2,848
— iBridge Technology - BIEE R 289 177
— AMDHK — AMDHK 474 345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT
OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December

BEMBHERRME (F)

36 A AREEERRKERER

R-EB-_=+=-A=+—HZ

2023 rXRAREEEER
2023 2022
—ZE_= —E_F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz TExT FABTT
ASSETS &E
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary N—HBARMIEE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REEE
Other current assets Hihmeh & E 217 192
Amounts due from subsidiaries A =N R E] 792,104 790,761
Amount due from a joint venture JEW —FH& & EFRIE 13 13
Cash and cash equivalents HWeNREEEIER 3,852 3,066
Total current assets REEEHAE 796,186 794,032
Total assets EEHE 1,031,859 1,029,705
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to the owners A2 FEH A
of the Company EihiEs
Share capital [N 7.343 7,343
Shares held under the Scheme SETEAZRGD (8,196) (8,196)
Share premium f& 10 @ B 613,261 613,261
Other reserves Hi A 408,140 405,940
Total equity wrER 1,020,548 1,018,348
LIABILITIES 81E&
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables BT E A M H R RE 1,452 1,530
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETH B A R I8 9,490 9,490
Current income tax payable JEAT R I8 146 146
Dividends payable FET IR E 223 191
Total current liabilities REEEAE 11,311 11,357
Total liabilities EE8E 11,311 11,357
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,031,859 1,029,705

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf.

CHING Chi Fai
Director

EF

ARAMEERBERN-_T_HWNF=A
“THEKREFRSHESTRAUATESRK

REE °

CHING Tsun Wah
BRE

Director

EF

SRR ERE R AR

R FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 36 ANAEEEERRFEEED

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for MzstA: BE-—Z=-=5+=A8
the year ended 31 December 2023 =t+—HLEFEXRATF
REEE
Merger  Share-based
reserve compensation Retained
(Note) reserves earnings Total
AOHRE  UROXAMN
(Hiiz) kA1 REEH Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THT
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-ZB-_ZE—F—RziH 224,147 - 181,064 405,211
Comprehensive income 2HENE
Profit for the year KEEHR - - 7,967 7,967
Total comprehensive income  2HEWEAH - - 7,967 7,967
Interim dividend relating t0 2022 —ZE=—FF 7 HHRE - - (7,238) (7,238)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-ZE--#+-A=t+-Hz&# 224,147 - 181,793 405,940
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-ZBE-_=5-F-Hz#&#& 224,147 - 181,793 405,940
Comprehensive income 2EKEH
Profit for the year AERET - - 38,392 38,392
Total comprehensive income 2K H4AE - - 38,392 38,392
Final dividend relating t0 2022~ —F=—FE 7 RERE - - (21,715) (21,715)
Interim dividend relating t0 2023 —ZE-=%E 7 HR 2 - - (14,477) (14,477)
Balance at 31 December 2023 R-FE-=F+-A=+-Az&#H 224,147 - 183,993 408,140
Note: e
Merger reserve of the Company represents the difference between the cost KRABNEHHEEENHEBERARNRERA R
of investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share BAEEEMBATIN —_EELFAHITE
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger BEREVEERNBREAAFETEFMELNKRD
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities. HERER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERRME (H)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EERFETHRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of REECDR TENEARAGEZEENE 2
the Company by the Group are as follows: EER (N
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Fees e 1,350 1,350
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other ¥ (5 RN - B fERL
allowances and benefits-in-kind KIEE # R 9,811 8,785
Contributions to pension scheme RIKREFTEIHER 122 126
11,283 10,261
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE-_E-_="F+-_A=1+—HI%F
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: B ARASTEEREEZTHABRN
ST
Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
Discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total
BEREHN
URGBXZME  BAHEG
ESfE He #e BiEfa 53 e ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FEx TER TER TER
Executive Directors (Note (i) HITES (M)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai REBERE 120 1,368 951 - 18 2,457
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEREE 120 831 611 - 18 1,580
Mr. LIU Zigang 87 E 120 994 914 - 50 2,078
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEEEE 120 831 860 - 18 1,829
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEERE 120 1,481 970 - 18 2,589
Independent Non-Executive BUKHTES
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan Ak E 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RER®FHE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson REBLE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit Brfrs 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHUTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BeEnt 150 - - - - 150
Total BEm 1,350 5,505 4,306 - 122 11,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBERME (F)

37 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 37 EERFETHRAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the BE_E-_—_F#+-_A=1+—HI%F
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: B ARG EFEREZITHRASHM
ST
Employer's
contribution
toa
Share-based retirement
Discretionary payment benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense scheme Total
EEFHRAR
MRAE BRI EIR
EEHA e e WA MR% R BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THT T THL
Executive Directors (Note (j) HITES(HH0)
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 2EREE 120 1,314 743 - 18 2,195
Mr. CHING Chi Keung REREE 120 797 542 - 18 1,477
Mr. LIU Zigang 3 FEI%EE 120 961 762 - 54 1,897
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BEELE 120 797 692 - 18 1,627
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEBRE 120 1423 754 - 18 2,315
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan LR 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REEEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BEBEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. KWONG Tony Wan Kit BafErt 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching REERT 150 - - - - 150
Total am 1,350 5292 3,493 - 126 10,261
Note: HeF -
(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all (i) THEHZBEHEZBHNTES
the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. (BIEARNTEE) LRETT -
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